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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REFORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ABOUT U5

International Entertairment Holdings Limited {the Company) is an intemationd hoiding group majority owned
by Providence Equity Fartners. The princinal aciivity of the Company it ta hald companigs that camy aut
complemeniary activities across the value chain of kve entertainment and theatrerelaled activity, principally
in the UK, USA, ardl Confinertal Erope [the Group]. The Group cornsiders that these markets have significant
potantial for growth and forms the basis for the Group's strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Compory's main holding is The Ambassador Theatre Group Uimited [ATG). ATG is o globadl leader i live
entertainmernt and is a fully integrated operator across the entire live entertainment value chain, with activities
in venue operations, ticketing, marketing services and content production. ATG operates in Gamany through
its subsiciary Metvl-BB Entertainment GrnbbH {Menrl-BB), which was formed by the merger of the Mehrt Group
{acquired in May 2018} with the B8 Entertainment Group of companies {acquired in May 2015).

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is focused on providing a high level of service to two groups of customers; producers and audisnce
members. By making the end-to-end “customer journey™ of our audience top pricrty, we will ensure that our
venueas are the best stages for the highest guality content developed by both ocur own in-house as well as 39
party producsrs,

Venue Cperalions

The im of our venue operations division is to provide a great service 1o both our producess and ow audience
members. We generafe revenues from renting our venues ta productions as well as seling food and

beverages to our audience mernbars.

Over the [asl financial year, to help mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the Group's capital expenditure has
been rephased and pricdtized on essential mantenance. However, 0z we move towards the easing of
gaovernment restrictions and re-opening of venues, investment in improving the quality of venues to enhance
our customens' thealte-going experence will rasume. Moy of the Group's venuas arg histode buildings
which have an import ant significance in their local areas. Investment in the maintenance of these buildings
is central to the Group's custodianship of them for the benehts of Fulure generations of audiences. The
development and improvement of thess venues to meet the needs and expeciations of today's audiences
and producers are equally important,

In the UK, the Group owns and operates some of the most igonic venyes wilh 10 in London and 21 more
across the country. The Group aperates 15 thaates in the USA, Including two Broadway venues [the Lyric
and the Hudson), and 13 theatres in other US cities, The Group also operates five venues in Germany as part
of the Mehrl-BB Entertainment Group.

Ticketing

The Group operates the iargest theatre ticketing business in the UK and seils the majority of tickets to shows

in ifs venues through its own ticketing businesses,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Cantent Production

A kev strategy of the Group's Content Production division s to find, secure, and produce high-quality shows
for both ATG ond third-party venuves. The Group develops and produces new content in addition fo co-
producing. investing in and presenting content from independent producers,

Moarkeling

The Group through its subsidiary componies of AKA Group, headguartered in London ond BB Gioup, heod-
quartered in Monrheim, Germany, & able to offer a wide range of marketing services, which ore indine and
complementary to the Group’s overal strategy. AKA, a glocbal entedainmend morketing and media
advertising agency for the live entertainment, arts and cultural industries has offices in London, Manchester,
New York and Ausiraglia. AKA has continued to support the Group's strategy of developing independent yet
complementary business lines to provide a fllservice experence to clients within the theclre and live
entertainment industry. Furthermore, AKA has seen its business offering extend further afigld with cients not

direcity inked to the live entertainment incusiry, such as museumns, galleries, gardens and zeologicat centras.

Alongside its production services, Mehr-BB Group, via its subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for liva
entertginmant productions in Germaon-speaking Europe.

REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's aperations were significantly disrupted in FY21 due 1o the COVID-19 Pandemic, All jurisdictions in
which the Group gperates had social distancing restiictions which required the closwre of all ils venues.
Throughout the year. the Group has been focused on conserving cqsh through cost restructudng and supplier
negotiations as well os implemenifing ovailable govemment support, in the form of furlough schemes, tax
payrment deferals, business rates refief and grants,

The Group has renegatiated its covenants with ifs lenders and extended the malurity of its senioricans 10 2025
The Group also raised additional funds from a new minority investor, Ampiify Capital Investment Ple, Ud, which
is owned by Silvericke Partnears.

The Group has postponed the mgjorly of its programming into the future and as o result, has relgined g high
proportion of the balance of advances scles of lickets sold pre-COVID- 19 shut down.,

The loss before tax for the period was £147.1 milion {2020: £33 9 million]. Curenl yaar and prior year losses are
attibutable to the mpact of COYID-19 on the Group.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFQRMANCE INDIC ATORS (KPis)

" Financial
Revenve Operading loss
£41.6m , {E94.6m}
; ’ (2020: £2.2m operating
{2020: £476.7m) ot

iaiefa o aro a " . >

Non-financial kKPis:

Due to the closure of venues throughout FY21, the non-financial KPis usually used to monitor the business
have not been considered by management, with focus instead on cash managament and ¢ost reduction,

Fingnclal KPIs:

- Reverus of £41.4m decremsed 1% from 2020 as COVID-1? forced the closure of all of the Group's

venuas for the full year. Flease refer ta note 3 for geographical analysis of revenue,

- The operating toss of £94.6m resuills from e reduction inrevenue, offset by lower cost of sales and
action taken by mancgement to reduce operating expenses,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the period-end is set out in the consolidated staterment of financial position on
pages 40 and 41, the consolidated statement of cash flows on page 44 and in the related notes on pagass 45
to 8%,

- Cash from operating acfivilies was o net cash outflow of £108.5 million {2020; inflow of £62.2 milion). This
reflects the Impact of COVIEE-19 on the year's rading, with an operating loss of £94.6 million {2020
operating profit £2.2 milion) and negative net working capital cash flow of £43.5 milion {2020: positive
£10.7 million).

- Investing cash flows include £14.8 millian {2020: £54.1 million) of capital expenditure. Copital expenditure
wos minimized in the year to preserve cash. This was offset by £1.4 milion {2020; £1.9 milion) net

recoupment in show investments In the pericd.

- Net debt, including finance lease liabiities, s consistent with prior year at £564. 1milion {2020: £564.2
milion}. New sharehoider leorns of £135.0 million were ralsed, offset by repayment of £85.5 miliion of bank
loans and £11.1 million of tinaonce lease repayments. Closing cash was £185.4 milion, up am £13%.1 mifion
at March 2020, and included a £2.4 million escrow balance |2020: £8.8 million),

- New shares were issued during ihe year, raising £151.3 million,

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Leverage and liquidify

The Group agreed with its lenders temporary amendments 1o the EBITDA calcutation used to test its leverage
covenont, which toke into account the impact of reduced trading. Under this amended agreement the
Groupr complied with its net leverags covenant throughout the period.

The net leverage covenont specifically focuses on the drawn senior debt of the Group so exciudes

sharehalder loans and finance lease liabilities (refer to note 19].

Tne cash balance wsed For leverage covenant testing excludes the cash balonce held by subsidiarles outside
of the banking group of £65.8m ot 27 March 2021 [2020: Nil).

Net debt for covanont purposes at 27 March 2021 was £310.3 million (£355.0 milion of senior debt plus £6%.4
million of revolving credit faciity net of cash {excluding escrow) of £117.1 milion). This was E13.0 million highsr
than the prior year ending bolance of £297.3 million,

Cash As at 27 March 2021, the Group had cosh and cash equivalenis of £185.4 million [2020:
£139.1 million}, including escrow accounts which are held for use primariy in connection

with specific productions, The Group also had addilional avaoilable revolving facilities of
£5.6 mition [2020: £5.6 milion]. The cash balance increased by £46.4 million in the period,
while freely available cosh incregsed by £52.7 million.

£Em For the 52 week
perled ended

27 March 2021

Operating cash flows (108.5)
Investing cash flows 13.3)
Financing cash flows 170.2
Net cash flows 434
impact of foreign exchanges {20
Movement in cash balance 464

Samcibivite Intarnsz! | Iea



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Bonmowings  The Group has tolal available bank Iacilities of £433.0 million, of which £5.8 million remains
undrawn al the period end.

The senicr debt is secured by a debenture aver the majorty of the assets of the Group.
the senior fociities agreement aso requires the Group 1o comply with certain covenants.

As at 27 Morch 2021, the Group was in complionce with its covenants.

The Group also has loans from its shareholders totalling £132.2m, including occrued iverest
{2020: ENil). interest on shareholder loans is non-cash payng and accrues ot fixed rates
ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%.

The Group has a finance lease creditor of £166.1 mitiion (2020 £177.2 million}.

The maturity of the disbt Is shown in notes 17, 20 and 28 1o the financidl staterments.,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent 1o the period end, the Group completed the acquisition of Nederdander Datroit LLT argd
Broadwoy San Francisco LLC tor total consideration of £173.2 million. This acouisition adds two theatres in San

Francisco and three in Datroit to the Group's portfaiio of owned and operated venues.

Subsequent 1o the period end the Group received €54 million of COVID-19 related goverrment grant income
frorm the Gearman govemmenl,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong lundomentals that underpin the theatrical industry combined with the quality of our porifolio of
venues contnbute o the Directors' confidence in the long term growth of the businass in future yeais. In order
to withstond the curent chaltenges of COVID-1?, the Group wil continue to judiciously monitor its cost base
and preserve and protect Hs iquidily position whilst ensudng that we are adeguately prepared for a speedy

return ta operations.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR YHE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATIERS

The Group recognises the importance of it environmental responsibilities, monitors its impact on the
environment, and designs ond implements appropriate policias to minirise ony damage thal mighi be

cauvsad by the Group's aclivities.

The Group seeks to reduce the environmentol impact of its operafions through responsible resource
procurement and consistently thrives 1o efiminate waste with our supply chain partners. Specifically, we are
driving efficiert energy procuremment, diverting all of cur waoste from landfill and where possibite, instaliing
energy efficiant systems in our venues. As an organisation ouwr environmental impact s o key pitar of our
overarching Corparate Social Responsibility strategy.

The closure of the Group's vanues throughout the year caused the majority of its cngoing environmental
impact initiatives to be paused. However, the closure of all venues and offices has initself reduced the Group's

enviranmental impact.
Greenhouse Gas Reporling

The Group is required by the Companies Act 2004, Regulations 2013 to measure and reports its direct and

indirect UK greenhouse gas emissions.

Direct greenhouse gos emissions are from sources that are owned or conkrolied by the Group. indirect
greenhouse gas emissions are from sources owned or conftralled by other entities but are o cansequence of

the activities of the Group.

The methodology vied 0 calculate emissions s based on the Greenhoyse Gos Prolocol’s comporate
Accounting and Repaorting Standard approach. The UK gavemment conversion factor guidanse [YDEFRA "}
was used to calculate emission factors.

Gresnhouse gas reparting is split between three categones. The explanations for thase are as follows;

Scape b Direct emissions controllad by the Group. This includes gas and oll used for heating as well as emissions

from compaony cars {both awned and leased).
Scope . ndirect emissons exclusively composed of purchased elechicity within the Group.

Scope 3 Indirect emissions which occur at sources which are not owned of controlled by the Group ond
which dre not classed o8 scope 2 emissions. This includas emissions from rental vehicles where the Group

purchased the fuel.

i3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Absolvte UK carbon emissions (tonnes of COy Year ended 27 March 2021
Scope | T 2,035.86
Scope 2 95687
Scope 3 7.92
3,000.45
2021

UK carbon intenshy
Tonneas of CO: per £'000 of revenue 0.14
Tonnes of CO:per employes 08y

QUR PECPLE

Number of employeas at 27 March 2021 Women Men Tolal
Diractors of the company P ’ 4 5
Other senior management 2 43 63
Employees 2,205 1,791 3,994

The Group complies with all relevant legilation including thase specifically targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the arganisation by the raquisite palicies. The Group
is committed to ensuring the hegith, safely and welfare of its empioyeas as far as s recsonably procticable.
The Group seeks to ensure that stalutory duties are met at all fimss and that it aperates effective health and
safety management policies and procedures,

The Group's policy & to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils, meetings and
company-wide surveys, matiers likely tc affect employees' interests. infermation on matters of concem to
semployeas is given through information bultetins and reparts which seek to achieve a common owarenass on

the port of afl employees of the financial ana economic factors affecting the Group's performance.

The Group continves to run its “Be o Star” and "“Be o Stor Manager"” training programmes, focusing on Front of
House and Box Office stoff from when they join the Group. developing their skills 1o improve customer
experignce, and futher olong the fne, the key aspects of people monagement. The Group also runs o two
year “Rising Star” programme for some of our highest polentiat junior staff as well as a leadership course for
senior mandgers “Leading Lights”. In FY20, we launched our sixth cohort of Rising Stars, and a third Leading
Lights Closs.

The Group’s policy is to recuit disabled workers for thase vacancies that they are dble to fil. All necessary
assistance with initial fraining courses is given. Cnce semployed. a coreer plan s developed 50 as to ensure
suitable opportunities far each disabled person. Arangements are made. wherever possible, for retrgining

14
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERION ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

employess wha become disobled, 1o enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudes
and abillities.

We continue to support internal engagement inttiatives such as infernational Women's Day. Pride and Mental
Hedalth Awareness wask, with more peopie bacoming involved in oft geographias.

Soclal and Communily Involvement

The Group recegnises that regional theatras, both in the UK and USA, are rocted in the heart of thelr local

communities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Credtive Learning departments which take a leading role in
contributing to the social cohesion of their communities in partniership with charities, trusts and organisations
nationwide, hcluding several local authorties ond further educotion partners. Over the course of o year,
Creative Leaming con boast more than 70,000 participants of all ages and abilities throughout the UK.

People of g wide vardety of ages ond akilities participate in the Group's Creative Learning aclivities. Oflen
Inspired by the productions at venues, these can include workshops with visiting companies, bacistage tours
and pre-show taiks, and also Youth Theatres, summer schools and classes for adults, in addition: to this, many

regional venues are used for several waeks a yeor by focol cmateur production companies.

On Broadway, the Lyric Thedire hosts an autism friendly performonce of Hamy Potter and the Cursed Child,
enlightening more than 900 children and adults who cre diagnesed with an autism spectrum disorder or other
sensitivity issues and their families and friends. Partnaring with Theatre Devsloprnent Fund (IDF), slight
adjustments to the produchion have been made so that The show is prasented in a fendly. supportive
environment, The Hudson Theatre hosts the 52nd 5t Project ot a performance of David Byme's American
Uopia. Founded in 1981, the 52nd Street Project s ¢ communily-based ards organisation, with ¢ mission o
bring together kids from Hell's Kitchen in Manhathan with theatre professionals to create odgingt thealre
offered ree 1o the gensral public. Teenagers from the arganisation’s song wiiting growp enjoyed the show
and were delightedly surprised by a "Meet 8 Greet” with David and the enfire band affer the performance.
The evening also sefved as a fundraiser for tne Project whete money raised would support the Befoved Non-

Profit Qrganization.

Sensithily: internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strateqic Report hos been prepared solely to provide informalion 1o shareholders to assess how the
directors have: performed their duty o promaote the success of the Group. The report contains certain forward-
iocking statements, which are made by the directorsin good faith based on the information available to themn
at fhe time that the report was signed, but ore subject to the inharent uncertainties underlying any forwvard-

looking information anad as such should be treated with caution.
APPROVAL

This repart was oporoved and authorised for issue by the Board of Dreclors on 21 July 2021 ond signed on its

behalf by’
mk_-——//

John Oldcom

Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3172 Stetement

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172{1} COMPANIES ACT 2004

The Board of Directors of Intematicnal Entertainment Holdings Umited (“IEM") consider, both individually and
together, that thay have acted In the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the Compony for the bienefil of its stakeholders as a whale (having regard te the stakeholders and
matters set out In seciion 172(1) [o-1) of the Act} in the decisions taken during the period ended 27 March
2021,

$172{1) A “The likely consequence of any decision in the long term™
The Directors have faken the decision they believe best support EH's strategic ombitions. sMore information
can be found under ‘Future Devslopments’ on page 5.

£172{1) B “The interest of tha company's empioyees™
The Directors recognise that [EH employees are fundamental and care to our business and the dalivery of ouwr
stigtegic ambitions. More Information can be found under "Our Feopte’ onpage 14,

5172{1) C "The need to foster the company's business relalionships with suppliars, customers and othens™

IEH stakeholders are customers, praducers, supplierns, employees. shareholders ond lenders and the Board
recognises the need to reguiary review the ldentily of its stakehalders s it makes decisions. The Board
promotes accountability and tronsparency with all stakeholders.

Tha Company’s fundamental belief in proroting the public good is demaomstrated and supported by our
Senior Leadership's active engagement goross industry bodies and our stakehelder cammunity,

The Group has recently introduced new customer angagement surveys which will determing the Net Promater
Score {NPS) of the Group — this process is run by an extemal company to ensure independence. NPS
performance is being reported to the Board on a monthly basis. Although this is a new process, the findings
are being used to improve customer angagement wilh knowledge being shared across all of our businass,

An annual employee 'Compemny Day' delivered in london provides a brsfing on the Company's
pefarmance and dllows individuals to raise guestions and concemns. The Group monitars ils emploves's
commitment ta its guiding framewark by asking member: of senior management to submit an annual
declaration confimning whether they have complied with the Groug's Code of Conduct. IF any employee
wishes ta highlight any potentiol breaches to the Code of Conduct, they can contact the independent
whistleblowing services provider ond a formal invastigation follows, wilh anonyrnous reperting to the Audit
Committee. Annudl employes engagement surveys are performed 1o highlight aneas requiring improvement
in communication of the Group's puipose, The Board considers the results of all employee engagement
surveys a good barometer of the workforce’s confidence in the Group's strategic direction, optimism for the
future and career opportunilies,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Payment Practices and Performonce Reporting. both of
which are pubished externally. The additional analysis required to conduct this reporting has highlighled some
argas in which the Group needs to improve. The Group wolcomas these changes as it seeks o constantiy
improve in i3 engagemen! with all stakeholders.

$172(1) © “The Impoct of the company's operalions on the community and the environment™
The Directors recognise the importance of its envireonmontal responsibiliies. More details can be found under
‘Envirenmeaniol matters’ on page 13,

5172(7) E "The desirability of the company maintaining a repulation for high standards of business conduct”
[EH hos zero tolerance for madern slavery, bribery and other forms of comuption. We implemenl and enforcs
effechive systems o counter madem slavery, bribery and comuption ond have infernal policies in place o
educale our employess about how to recognise ond deal with these issues so as o ensure compliance with
laws.

We remain committed to combatting modem slavery, brivery and comuption by:
~ Auditing our supply chains;
Training our staff to rocognise these ksues;

- Moritoring potential risk across our business.

We have a dedicated whistieblowing service for our employees to report misconduct or unethical practices
and have a policy which clearly sets out how members of staff can raise any concerns which they may have,
Details of our code of conduct and modem skavery can be found on the ATG welbsite;

hitps ./ fwww alg.co.uk/corporgte-information

hips:{ Fwwew, alg. co.ukfatg-modern-slavery-and-humor e rafhcking-stalemend

5172(1) F “The need to act faidy os between members of the company”
At every Board meeting the Direclors review, wilh the monagermsent teom, the progress against strategic
priarities and the changing shape of the business pordfolio.

This collaborative approach by the toard, together with the Boord's approval of the company strategy, helps
it to promote the long-term success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of what it
considers to be in the best interes! of the long-term financial success of the compony and its stakehoclders,
including shareholders, employess, the community and envirorment, our suppliers ond customers,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued }
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal declsions - engaging with stakeholders

As part of the decision making process for the Board, it continues to have regard for the impaoct of its decisions
an the Group's stakeholders as required under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, The Board takes its
responsibility towards stakeholders seriously and strives fo build ond maintain productive relationships with

each of them.
We outline here how we engage with our stokeholders to drive outcomes.
1. Cmployees

The Group's long-term success is predicated on the commitment and contibution of ils workforce.
Engagernant with our employees is essential to meat our shatedgic goals,

During this year, the Board has had to take the difficult decision to furlough the majority of the Group's staft
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The use of Govemment Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany
has allowed the Group to avoid, reduce or mitigate redundancies which might otherwise have beenrequired,

Resources have been made available to employees to support their mental hegith and wellbeing during this
time. Tne Group has also implemented regular pulse surveys, CEQ breakfasts and newsletters to ensure that

employees remain engaged throughout this time.
2. Customers

Customers are central 1o the success of the Group and engagement with our customers allows the Group to

understand their requirements ang drive initiatives that seek to consistently improve the customer experience.

During the pariod in which the venues have bean closad, the Group has sought to use this tima te pian for re-
opening of our venueas. In order to ensure that custormers feel canfident M rétuming 10 owr venues. the Group
has implementad regular customer surveys to better understand what COVID-1? securs madsures custormers
are expecting to see. The feedback from our customers has been invaluable in determining our COVID-19

response.

Like many busingssas, once COVID-192 resulted in the iockdown of our venues, the Group had & large volume
of customer requeasts 1o manage. To aid our employees and provide better customer service, the Group
iplemeanted o new customer service technology solution and a second customer service call centre 1o

manage the influx of cuslomer queries in an efficlent and timely manner.
3. Suppliers

Thé Group has o number of lang-term supplier parnerships which dare an important part of our business
including in relation to venue operations ond IT infrastruchure,

The Group engages with its supply chain through a variety of methods including vic dedicoted relationship
managers, 0 central procurement function and meet the buyer evants. The Group recognises the value of its
supply chain partners and the colioborative approach the Group bas taken with its suppliens allowed the
Group to respond proactively and promplly to the impact of COVID-19.

e
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {coniinved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Buwving 2020, as part of the infiiatives to prasenve liquidity. the Group worked with suppliers to adjust its supply

needs.
4. Content Pariners

Our content pariners are key to deliverng a successful customer expevience, Throughout the COVID-19
Pandemic it has been imperalive thal we engage with our content partners to ensure that there is o plon for
how we deal with the re-scheduling and cancellation of shows in our venues, We have watked in conjunction
with our partners ko ensure Thal this has been undertaken in o manner which preserves the customer
relationship. The close werking relationship with our pariners has enabled us te plan for the re-opening of our
venues wilth o strong content pipeline dueg 16 the continued support from our content partners.

5. Communities and the Envirocnment

The Group understands that it has an impact on communities and we engage with them in a number of
different ways including: local cubreach programmes, creative ledarning and community partnerships amongst
afhers. As well a3 having a ceniral craative outreach function, sach of our venues alio has its own iniliofives
for communily engagement, Due to our geographic spread across the regions of the UK, MNorth America and
Gemoany. the Group is able to respond 1o the specific needs and opportunities in each areq.

We strive to reduce the environmental impact of cur operations, and those of our supply chain partners,
through the responsible sourcing of resources. Key initiatives Include driving sustainable energy procurement,
instaliing more energy efficiant systems In cur venues wheraver possible, and diverting all waste from fandfill,

4, Shareholders

The Group is in regular dialogue wilh its shareholdars. The Group's sharehokders gre represented on the Beard
and meet regularly Ihroughout the vear lo discuss the key decisions to be made by ihe Group.

The close working relationship with the Group's sharehoiders has enabled the business to focus onkey strategic
objectives which have been set by the Boord ond focus on long-term opportunities that mest the
raquirsments of the shareholders.

7. Financiat institulions

The Group regularly meets with its banks, There is an annuat prasentation of the Group's performance, regular
interim reporting and presentation of the Groug’s budget. This has enabied the Group to torge strong relations
with its bankers and given them a better understanding of the Group's business and its perfomance.

A good relationship with the Group's bankers has encbled the Group to negoticte a temporary odjustmant
to certain inancial covenants during the period when the Group's venues have had 1o be closed dus 1o the
CCVID-19 restrictions.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal decisions made

We outiine here some of the principal decisions made by the Group and how the directors have considered

vanous stakeholders.
1. COVID-19 Measures

The final monrth {March] of FY20 was o period of considerabble vncertainty for all busingsses, including ours,
which worranted @ respamnse 1o the unprecedented impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. We recognised
quickly that lhare were: likaly to be significant impllcations of this pandermic on ourselves, as well as all other

location based entertainment businesses, Our marketing services business waqs abso impracted a5 many of its
clients are theairical or iocation entertainment businesses, like museumns ond galleties. By 17 March 2020, we
had closed all of our venues wotldwide, in order o protect show casts and crew members, our employees

and visitors, Since then, we have diigently followed of government guidelines in each relevant geography.
In order to presarve liguidity ond mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken fhe following measuras:

- created ¢ Business Conlinuity Committes, which has been focused on crisis manogement and key

decision making:
- ongoing engagement with ol our stakehoiders, including our shareholders and lenders;

- implementation of bi-weekly cash flow forecasts to manage liquidity at o granular izvet throughout the

Group;
- robust recpening scenaric medeling to drive decision making:
- proactive mancagement of rescheduling shows to future dates to minimize the level of show cancellations;

- asignificant element of the Group's cost base reiates to woges and salaries. Where possible, and subject
to local reguiations, staffing tevels and hours worked have been reduced. Employees, including senior
management and directors, have also undedaoken salary sacrfices, Govemment support both in the UK
in 1he form of the Job Retention Scheme and in Gamany in the form of fhe Kurzarbeit progrom has besn

utiised to nffset staffing cosls that continue 16 be incured;
- capital expenditure hos been rephased ond priortized on essential maintenance; and

- actions have been taken 1o deler or parmanently reduce payments of fixed costs emd unpold varioble
caosts from the pre-pandemic period. including agreements with Government fiscal autherities on certain

tax payments.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Whilst 1he Boord has made decisions to deal with the immediate impact of the COVID-1% pandemic it has
aliso made Ihese declsions with regards to the Group’s longer term strategic objectives, For example, despite
Emifs on cash reserves and initiatives to preserve liguidity, the Group has continued to invest in COVID-I9
sacure measures that will nead to be implemented for re-opening our venues. Invesiment in key strategic
initictives such os IT and cyber security have continued.

2. Investment in digital capabilities to drive pre-show and invenue F&B

As o customer facing business it is important to continuo to evolve to improve customer experienca, The
members of tha Board were satisfiad thot the development and roli-out of o new digital food and beverage
sales channel was an impertant step for the Company to toke to improve the user experience for our
customers. The ability 16 order food and beverage on-ine prior o and during your visit would reduce queues
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COVID-19 infection,

3. Investment in building CAPEX

Despite our initiatives 1o preserve liquidity during the period when our venues have been closed. the Board
has also considered it prudent to invest in our buildings where we can. Undertaking key repairs and
enhancemants, whilst our venues have been closed has enabled us 10 ensure that we do nol have to
postpone or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number of these projecis ensure that we provide g better

experignce for our custormers and content partners so that they remain safeguarded for the future,
4. investing in diversity and [nclusion

Despite our vernuas being closed, the Board has comnsidered it key to continue to focus on diversity and
inciusion both on ond off the stage. Kaving taken inlo account previows work undertaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Beard has considered it important to expand upon the intialives already undertaken,
improving the diversity of voices within the Group wilt enhance the longer termn success of the Group os o

whole.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthany Ball, Nen-Executive Direclar

Anthony Ball served as Chalrmaon of nternotional Ertertainment Holdings Limited from December 20146 to April
2021 and remains on the board as a nron-executive director. He has been a senior advisor of Providence Equity
Partners since 2013, He has had g long and successiul carger in the media ond enteriainment industries in the
UK and internotionally, as chairman of Kabet Deutschiand from 2005 to 2013 and o3 TEO of 85kyB. the largast
poy-TV broadeaster in Eurepe, Prior bo this, ke was the CEQ of the News Comporalion/Liberty Meadia joint
venture, Fox/liberly Networks, which included the FX Networks, fox Sparts Net and over 20 regional sports
channels throughou! the US. He & a non-executive director of BT Group aond chairman of Portland
Communications. Anthony received o MBA from Kingston University and has been awarded honorary

doctorates from both Middlesex University and Kingston University.
Mark Comedll, Chief Executive Olicer

mMark Comell was appainted Group CEQ of the Ambassador Theatre Group i May 2014, Priar 1o this he was
Managing Director of Sotheby's Eurape and preceding that, spent 10 years ol LYMH, including President and
Chief Execulive Officer of Moel Henhessy USA and Chisf Executive Officer of Krug Champagne, Mark has
vast experencs in monaging large organisations, s well as successfully leading consumer-orientated bronds
in the UK, Europe and the USA.

Staphen Evans, Non-Execulive Dhector, Silvar Loke Parthers

Stephen Evons joined Silver Loke in 2008 and is a Managing Director. Mr. Evans serves on the board of
Ambassador Thealre Group [ATG]. Endeavor and TEG. He i a member of the oudit commillees of City
Football Group and UFC. He alse previously served on the boards of Ancestry.com and Serena Software, Inc.
Prior to joining Siver Lake, Mr. Evans was a Principal at Cognetas, a pan-Eurapean private equity frm, where
he focused on transactions across business and information services. Previously, Mr. Evans spent five years at
Bain 8 Company, based both in Europe and the US., including twe years in Bain's private equily group. He is
a member of the exscyulive board of the EB Research Foundation, which is dsedicatsd ta finding a cure for
Epidermolysis Bullosa, a rare children's disease. Mr. Evors holds on M A, ond an M.Phil from Cambridge
Uriversity, and an M.BA. From Harvard Business School.

David Leigh, Non-Execulive Director

David Leigh jdined the Internationdl Entertainment Holdings Uimited board o8 @ non-executive director in
October 2015, He is CEO of Alexander Mann Solutions, a rele he has held since Novernber 2019, Prior to
joining Alexander Mann, David was CEQ of Study Group, and prior 1o that was CEQ of SHL. Prior to SHL, he was
on the Executive Commiltee of Groupe Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Outsourcing. David's
earfier background was in private equity [iFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Atlantic Pariners and the Bostan Consulting Group). consutting (Mckinsey 8 Co) and law (Herbert Smith}).
David has an MA in Social and Political Sciences from Cambridge University and o post-graduate legal

quadlification from the Collage of Law, London,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES {continued)

Alexander Mishanin, Non-Executive Direclor, Frovidence Equily Padners

Alexdander Mishenin s o vice prasident based at Providence Equity Partners. Prior to joining Providence in 2016,
Mr. Mishenin worked as an analys! in the investment banking group at L.P. Morgan in London. Mr. Mishenin
received o Masters in Finance and Law from Duisenberg School of finance and o Bachelor of Business

Informatics from the Higher School of Economics, Moscow.
jonathan M. Nelson. Executive Chalman, Providence Equity Parners

#r. Nelson was appoinled Chairman of Ilemational Enterdainment Holdings Limited in Aprif 2021, Mr. Nedlson
s execulive chairman and founds: of Providence Equity Parners, the world's teading private equity frm
focused on media, communications, education and information invesiments. The fim manages funds with
$45 vifion in commitments and has invesied in more than 170 companies gloically since its inception. Mr.
Nelson serves on the board of direclors of Ambassador Theatre Group and The Chemin Group. He has also
served as g dirsctor of numerows othor Providence portfolio companies. including Bresnan Communications,
Ercom pic, Huly, Language Line, MetroNet {now AT&T Canadal, MLS Media, Univision, VoiceStream Wireless
{mow T-Mobile US), Wamer Music Group, Westem Wireless Comporation [now ATAT Com}p and Yarkees
Entertainment and Sports Network (YES].

Mr. Nelson has been g privale equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence in 1989,  Previously, he
was a managing director of Noraganset! Capilai, Inc. which he joned in 1983, At Narragansett Capital, Mr.
MNelson specidlized in privale equily investments In media. M. Nebon received a Maoster of Business
Administration from the Harvard Business Schocol in 1983 and a Bachelar of Arls from Brown University in 1977,
He is 2 trustee of Brown University, The Rockefelar Universily and Instituts for Advanced Study. He 5 a member
of the Board of Dean's Advisors ol Harvard Business School.

John Oldcom, Chlef Financlal CHicer

John Cldcom was appointed as CFO of Internationat Entedainrment Holdings Limited on 1 July 2021. Prior to
this John spent three years as the Group CFO of Argent Foods, a £750m tumover conglomerate of food-related
business. At Argent he oversaw relolionships with lendevs and other key stakeholders, played a key role in the
group navigating succeassfully through the pandemic, and led four debt raises / refinancings, and significant
Comporate and M&A activity. Prier 10 joning Argent In 2018, John spent 25 years working in prafessional
prachce with Arthur Andersen, Deloitte and, latterly, KPMG, the last 14 vears as a partner. He co-led the
cregtion and rapid growth of a dedicoted, mulli-disciplinary, private equity practice serving global PE clients
and their portfolio companies across Europe. typically in a fast-paced M&A environment.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES {continuved}

George Osborne, Non-Execufive Director

George Osborne joinsd the board of IEH as a non-execulive director m Aprit 2021. He Is g pariner at Robey
Warshaw LUP. Prior o his curent rotes, George was an MP for siktaen years, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
{2010-201 8} and First Secretary of Slafe [2015-2014). and edited the London Evening Standard Form 2Q17-2020.
George s chalr of the not-tor-prafit Northern Powerhause Partnenthip ond d Lecturer at Stanford University,
Califomia. In 2014 he was made o Companion of Honour by Hear Majasty the Queen

Robert Sudo, Non-Execudive Direclar, Frovidence Equlty Partners

Robert Suda is o managing director at Pravidence Equity Parinen. He i also a director of Bité, Closer $il Media,
H5E24. Mastdyil and LaCentrale. Frior to joining Providence £quity Partners in 2004, Robert worked as an
anatlyst for Galdman Sachs in margers and acquisiions and corporale finance, He receved a Diploma in
Businass Administration frore HHL Leipzig Graduate School of Managemendt.

Andrew Tisdale, Non-Execulive Chiecior, Frovidence Equlty Pariners

Andrew Tisdale is a Senior Managing Directar and Co-Head of Butope at Providence Equity Parthers. He B
also a Director of CThime Communication, Closer St Media, HSE24, TES Global and Noded. Prior to joining
Providence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew wos global co-head of the media and communications group
and a member of Morgan Stanleys management committes for investment banking, Andrew received a
Master of Business Administrafion from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hif and a Bacheaior of Arfs
from Vandearbilt Univernsity. He currently servas an the Space innovation Council at the Califomia Institute of
Technology and, the Board of Advisors for the Yale School of Draomo, and Vanderit University s College of
Ars and Sciences.

Micha#t Vervisch, Non-Executlve Director, frovidence Equity Partners

mMichaél Vervisch is a managing directar at Providence Equity Pariners. He & aisao a director of Noded. Mr
vearvisch originally jgined Providence in 2014, In the past he worked s a principal af Clayton Oubilier & Rice,
as an associate director gt iK Investmant Partners and as an associate af MeKinsey & Company. Mr. Vervisch
recaived a Master of Busingss Administration from Harvard Busingss School and holds a Master of Scienca in
Blectrical Engineering and o Master of Science in Applied Economics from the Kathclieke Universiteit Leuven
in Belgium,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The directors present their report and the audited financial stalements for the period ended 27 March 2021.
The directors consider the annudl report and financial statements 1o comply substantially with alf aspects of

the "Guidelines tor Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity™,
DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the period and e fhe dafe of signing the financiol siatementds {except as
noted) were;

Anthony Ball

Mark Comell

Stephen Evans Appointed & October 2020
Sinisa Krnic Resigned & October 2020
Cavid Leigh

Alexander Mishenin Appointed 6 October 2020

Jonathan Nelson Appointed 27 Aprl 2021
John Gldcorn Appointed 1 Jjuly 2021
Geaorge Osborne Appointed 27 April 2021
Robert Sudo

Shankae Teo Rasigned 1 July 2021

Andrew Iisdale

mMichael Vervisch Appointed § QOclober 2020

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on page 23 to 25.

The Group s majority owned by Providence Equity Partners itrough its investment funds, Providence Equity
Partrers Vil-A LP and Providence VIl Global Holdings LP. Providence Eauity Partners is ¢ global alternative
investment firm established in 1989 focused on educotion, media, communications, and information
invastments. The fim's privole equity platform specialises in sector-focused buyout transactions ond growth
capital investments. Frovidence Equity Pariners made its investment in the Group through IE Luxco 5.81.7.0
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company bas made gualifying thind-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its drectors which were
mode during the patiod and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The ioss for the pericd affer toxation anounied 1o £13%.0 milion [2020: £25.9 milion),

No dividends have been pald during the curant period [2020; £N1]. No dividands are proposed inrespact to
the current period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approvai of these financial statements, the impact of COVID-19 on the Group's rading
continues to be assessed and is subject 1o rapidly changing extemndal factors, including evoiing goverrment
responses to control the spread of the virus and ongoing changes in customer senfiment 1owards attending

live entertainment events.

Due 1o the meosures token by govemments worldwide to control the COVID-19 outbreck, the live
entertainment industry came to a standstill from the second half of March 2020, with ol owr venues being

closed for operations.

Prior to mid-March 2020, the Group had traded well wilth a programming schedule of highly successiul shows
supporting strong operational performance across ol of its teritories. We were in a strong financicl position
with ¢l covenants under the terms of our loans being met, Unfortunately, the closure of our venues has resulted
in @ shorp drog in tumover. Qur marketing servicas businasses are Qlso experiencing a drop in tumover as many
of our customers dre in the live enterainment and cultural & heritage sectors [museumns, galleries, zoos); ol of
which have had restrictions on their operalions during COVID-19, Whilst there has been g corresponding
reduction in variable cosrts as a resull of the ciosure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund its
tixed costbase,

In order to preserve igquidily and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic., the Directors
of tha Group hove taken a number of measures as set out on page 21 of this report.

The Group has net curent liabilities of £53.4 milion {2020; £1&8.7 million) and net assets of £61.1 milion (2020:
£49.0 millon} at the period-and date. Net current iobilities include cdvanced ficket sales of £113.8 million
(2020: £142.4 milion}. These rapresant ticket salas for shows that have yet to maiure, with a portion of this
omount due io flow 10 the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales and nontefundable granis. the Group has
liabiiities due within one year of £144.2 milion {2020: £187.0 milion} which are exceeded by current assets of
£227.7 milion, {2020; £206.5 million.

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts, in its bank accounts of £182.7 milion gs
at the reporting date. In addition, the Group has received an equity commitment from its shareholders, which

is presently undrown.

The Group operates and robust, bi-weekly cash and cash flaw forecasting process covering the period fo 31
December 2022,

Sensitivitias are run to rafiect different scencrios for when theatres might or wil be able to re-open inthe months
following the dote of the approval of these financial statements. This is done to identify risks to liguidity and
covenant compliance and enable management o formulate oppropriate and timely mitigation strategies.

These sensitivitias include severe, but plausible, downside scenarios.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 2B MARCH 2020

Based on these forecasts and other faciors which may impact the Group's future kuidity pasition, the

Directors hove concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis,
The reasons for this are as follows:

- The Group holds £433.0 million of committed facilities which are subject to net leverage ond liquidity
covenants. There is a reduced risk of default on the net leverage covenant, due to a facility amendment
which allows for an adiustment to the net leverage covenant whilst theatres are closed by governments
dus to COVID-19 ond during an agreed romp up period post re-opening. The Group is also subject to o
minimum kquidily covenont which is forecast to be met for the next 12 months; and

-~ Adequate liquidity is in place for the next 12 moniths based on the foreseeable scenarics for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates, palential restactions on how our venues can operate [i.e. social distancing
requirements), and the leve! of demand from audiences. At present, govammaent policy on reopening of
theatrical venues and social distancing tequirements varies across the countries and regions that the

Group operates in,

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its ability to monage its liquidity requiremants, confidence in
the confinued support of aur sharehalders, and the long term potential of the business fomms The basis of our

preparation of the financial statements on g going concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT {conlinved)
FOR THE $2 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

MATYERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certain motters (post balance sheet events, future developments, principal risks and uncerlginlies and
employee matters] ore discussed within the Strategic Report and incorporated into the Directors’ Repaort by
reference.

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confinms that:

- s0 for as the director is aware, thaere is no relavant oudit information of which the Company's auditor is
whaware, and

- the director has taken all the steps that he/she aught to have taken as a director in order to moke
himseif/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to estabish that the Company's auditor is

aware of that information.

This confumation 5 given and should e interpreted i accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the
Companies Act 2004,

Delcitte LLP have expressed their wilingness te continue in office as auditor and a resolution {o reappoint them
wili be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved and autharised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and signed on ifs
behgif:

v

John Qldcorn

Director

Registered office
28 54 Gecorge Street, London
WIS 2ZFA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance

with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directers 1o prepare financict statements for each fincmeial period. Under that low
tha diractors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Infemational Finoncial
Reporting Standards lIFRSs} as adopted by the Ewropean Union, Under company law the direciors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied thal they give a fua and foir view of the stole of
atfcirs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these fingngial
statements, Intermnationat Accounting Standord 1 requires that directars:

- properly select and apply accounting policies;

- presant information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandabkle information;

- provide gdditional disclosures when complionce with fhe specific requitements in IFRSs are insufhicient
to enable users to ynderstand the impact of particular tronsactons, other events and conditions on
the entity's financial position and financial pedformance; ond

- moke an assessment of the Company's abllity 1o continue as o going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficiant to show and explain
the Company’s trarsactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to enswe that the financial stataments comply with the Companies Act 2004,
They are also responsibie for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasanable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraoud and cther iregularities.

The directors are responsiole for the maintenance and intagrity of the comperate and financial information
included on the Company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

We confirm that to he best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financict raporting framewerk,
give q true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of loss of the Company
and the underiakings included in the consolidation taken as g whols;
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (continued)

- the Strategic Repart includes o foir review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the vndertakings included in the comsolidation loken as a whole,
together with a dascription of the prancipol risks and uncertainties thot thoy face; ana

- the annual report and financict statements, taken as o whole, are fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the information necessary for shareholders to ossess the Group's performance. business
madel and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by The Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and s signed on its behalf

Slfo—

John Oldcorn
Diractor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the audk of the financlal statements

Opinlon
In our opinion the finoncial staterments of Internationatl Entertainment Holdings Limited {the ‘parent company'}

and its subsidiories (the ‘group'):

e give o frue and fdir view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s offairs as at 27 March
2021 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting sfandards In conforrnity with
Ihe tequirerments of the Companies Act 200¢; and

+ have been prepared in accordancea with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004,

We have gudiled the financial statements which compxise:

¢ the comoidated stotement of comprehensive income,;

+« the comolidated and company statements of financial position;
+« the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity,

the consolidated statement of cashflows; and

the ralated notes ! to 33,

L

The financial reparting framework that hos been applied in their preparation is applicobie taw and
international accounting stondards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004.

Basis for opinlon
We conducted our qudit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK} [ISAs {UK)} and

applicable law, Our responsibiifies under those standards are further described in the ouditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial stalemeants section of ourreport.

we are independent of the group and the parant comparny in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are rgievant ta our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the
'FRC's'} Ethical Standaid, and we have fulliled ow other ethical responsibilities in accordance with theseé
requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and gppropriate to provide

a basis for gur opinion.

Conclusions reiating te going concern

In guditing the financial state ments, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the golng concerm boasis of

accounting in the preparation of the tinancial statements is apprapidate,

Qur evaluation of the directors' assessment of the group's ond parent company's ability 1o conlinug te adopt

the going concem basis of accounting included:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

« an assessment of the enditias financing facilties including nature of faciities, repayment terms ond
covenants;

« o review of managemant's farecasts, including challenging management's key assumptions such ¢ the
reopening dates of theatres, the ocoupancy levels, the base level of operating costs, the cash flow ta
achieve re-opening. and the rafund rate on advanced sales;

s« ah gssessment over the amount Of headroom in the forecasts tcash and covenants) on abase case ancd
under management’s sensitivity anclysis of an extended dark period or g reduction in occcupancy rates,
and

«  feview over the model used ta prepare the forecasts, testing of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and

our assesstment of the historical accuracy of farecasts prepared by management.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any malerial uncertainties relating to events
or conditions thal, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent
company's ability to confinue s a going congem for g pericd of at least twelve months Bom when the

financial statemants are guthorised for issue.

Our responsibiiities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concem are described in the
relevant sections of this roport.

Other information

The other informcation comprisas the information included in the annual report, other than the financicl
statements and our cuditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information conlained
within the anrua! report, Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other inforration and.
excepd to the extent otherwise explicilly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

Qur responsibility is o read the other information and, in deing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained In the course of the audi, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such malerial inconsistencies or apparent materiol
misstatements, we are required to detemmine whether this gives rise to o material misstatement in the finonciol
statements themseives. K, baosed on the work we have performed, we conclude thal there is a material
misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing tc repor in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' resporsibitilies statemerd. the diectors ore resporsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being setistied that they give ¢ tue and Fair view, ond for such
intemal contral as the directars determine is necessary to engble the preparation of inoncial statarments theat

are free from maoterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
company's ability to continue as o going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters retated te going concem
and wiing the going concern basis of accounting untass the directars either intend to liguidate the greup or
the parent company or 1o cease operations, or have no rediistic altamative but to do so.

Audilor's responsibilities for the gudit of the financlal statements

Qur objectives are to obtoin reasonable assurance obout whether the financial statements as a whole are
frea from materiol misstoternent, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an guditar's report that includes
o opinion, Reqsonoble asswrance i a high lavel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducled in accordance with 154s (UK} will always detect o maternial misstglement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matetial if, individudlly or in the aggregate.
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of ysers taken on ke basis of these

fingncial statements,

A fusther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financiol statemenis is located on the FRC's

website at: www fre. ok /audit orresponsiaiities. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Extent to which the avdit was consldered capable of detecting Imegularities, including fraud

imegularities, including froud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and reguiations. We design
proceduras in line with our responsiiiities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
mreguladties, including fraud. The extent to which ow procedures are capable of detecting imegulanties.

inclucling froud is detailed below,

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and its control environmeni, and reviewed the group's
documentation of their policies and proceadures relating to fraud and complioncs with lows and regulations.
We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of tha risks of iregularities,

Wwe chiained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group coperates in, and
identified the key laws ond regulations that:
= had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Campanies Act, IFRS, CIRS and tax legislation; and
« donothave a direct effect on the inancial statements but compliance with which may be fundomental
io the group's ability to operate or to avoid ¢ maletial pendlty:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

We discussed among the audil engagement feam, including significant component audit teams and refevant
intemal specialists such s tax, and valuotions specialists regarding the opportunities and incentives thot may
exist within the orgaonisation for Faud and how and where fraud might oceur in the financial statements,

As aresult of performing the cbove, we identified the greatast patential bar fraud or non-compliance with icnws
and reguiations in the following oreas, and our specific procedures performed to addrass them are described

below:

« Judgement and estmotion, which give dse to the rsk of fraud ore required in the preparation of
discounted cash fiow ['DCF'| models wed to determine whether there is an impalrment of goodwill and
other assets. The same DCF are applied to support the camying value of ihe Group's venues. The fraud
risk arises with the estimates made over the future trading assumptions, specifically the assumed date of
venues re-opening and the discount rate applied. We have challenged management’s assumptions and
considered both supporting or conlradictory evidonce whilst also engaging specialst input into the audit
of the discount rate In each region. We have olso considered the gppropriateness of the sensitivities
perfarmed by management and the disclosures thereot.

» The Group has utiised a number of Covid-19 related govemment support schemes. The nature, eiigibility
and complexity of the schemes varles between territorizs. We identified a froud fisk in relation to the
Group's applications under these schemes given the complexity and reduced time period in which the
schemes were established, specifically pinpainted to the Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany.
The risk 15 that amounts claimed by the Group could be intentionally. or unindenlionally, misstated which
could lead to repayments, fines and reputational damage. We have considered the design and
implementation of the conlrols managament instigated to ensure the accowacy of applications and
recording of assislance received. With the involvement of our speciclist team we have inspected socurce
documentation ond, for a sample of claims recalculated amounts claimed and roced payments to the
HMRC claims portal and the bank receipt of funds ensuring consistency with amounts recorded in the
finoncial statements. We have also reviswed the disclosures made inrespect of government assistance.

In common with all cudits under ISAs (LK), we are also required to perform specific procedures fo respond to
the risk of monagement overide. in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumal entries ond other adjustments: assessed whaether the judgements made
in ma¥ing accounting estimates are indicative of a polential bias; and avaluated the business rationale of
any sighificant transactions that are unusual or cutside the nomMmo! course of business,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

In addition ta the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing o supporting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant lows and regulations described as having @ direct effect on the financial

statements;

performing analytical procedures to ideatify any unusual or unexpected relatianshins that may indicate
risks of material mitstatement due to fraud:
enguiring of management conceming actud!l and potential litigation and claims, and mstances of non-

compliance with laws and regulations; cnd

regding minutes of meetings of those charged with govemnance and reviewing correspomdence with
HMRC.

Repoit on cther legal and requlatory requirements

Opinlons on othar matters prescribed by the Companies Act 20046

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the coursé of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year tor which 1he
financal statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; ang
the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordarice with applicoble lego

requirements.

n the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
envircnment obigined In the course of the audit, we have not denfified any material misstatements in the

strategic report or the directors' report,

Matlters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companias Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in qur opinion;

adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the parend company. or returns adaquata for owr
audit have not been received from branches nol visited by us? or

the parent compainy financial statements are not in agresment with the accounting records and returns:
or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made: or

we have notf received all the information ond explanations we raguire for our audit,

We have rothing to repart in raspect of these matters,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Use of our teport
This report is made solely 1o the company’s merbers, os o body, iIn accordance with Chaptler 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Acl 2004. Our ocudit work has been undertaken se that we might! state 1o the company's
members those mattern we ore required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose, To
the tullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsitiity o anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formmed.

0 e u
Halen Wildman ACA [Senior Stotutary Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statulory Auditor

London
Unitad Kingdom

21 July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note £2 week period 52 week pericd
ended 27 March ended 28 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Revenue 3 41.441 474,747
Cost of soles 119,208} {189,248}
Gross profit 22,433 287,499
Administrative expenses {116,793} {284,575}
Share of results of associates and ioinl ventures 11 (247} {702}
Operating [ioss] /profit 4 (94,600} 2,222
Finance income 7 1.546 1,344
Finance costs 8 154,072} (37,473}
Loss before tax {147.135] (33,907
Taxation b 8,183 7.582
Loss for the peried {138,952} {25,925)
Attriutable 1o
Owmars of the Company {138.952) {25,925]
Comprehensive Income
Lass for the period (138,952) {25,925)
ftems that may be reclossified subsequently 1o
profit or loss;
Exchange differences on fransiation of foreign {492) 5,195
operatons
ftems thot will not be reclassified subsequenliy 1o
profit or loss;
Remegsurements of post-employment benefit 274 241
chligafions
Tolal comprehensive 16ss For the period {139,179 {20,489}
Attibufoble fo:
Cwners of the Company {132,170} {20, 489)
Totgl comprehansive loss for the period {139,170} {20,489}

Al activity relates to continuing operations.

There dre no materigl differences between the losses far the periods disclosed above and their historical cost

equivglenis. The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunclion with these financicl

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 March 28 march 27 March 23 March
202 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £000

investments 10,33 2,378 4 354 413,835 262,575
nterests in associates and joint ventures 11.33 3,528 1.51% - -
Goadwill 12 342.884 372,730 - -
intangble gssets 12 18,609 14.328 - -
Propedy, plant and equipment 13 389.47% 430,905 - -
Beferred tax assets 22 17316 11,567 - -
Non-current trade and other recaivabies 14 22,431 23,318 - .
Non-current assets B16,425 840,723 413.835 262,575
inventories 14 505 1,044 - -
investmeants in shows 15 2,393 3794 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 39,360 62,554 -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 185,432 137,065 144 -
Current assels 227,690 206,457 144 -
Total assets 1044315 1,067,180 413,981 242,575
Trade ond ofher payables 8 189,571 260814 11,044 10,900
Borowings 9 $9.370 69,370 - -
Obligations under finonce leases 20 16393 19.474 - -
Provisions 21 15801 25,483 - -
Currant liabliies 291,135 375143 11,044 10,900
Net current llabititfes (63.445) {168,487) (10,900} (10,900}
Bomrowings 19 514.037 454,670 - -
Obligations under finance leases 20 149,693 157.706 - -
Deferred tax iabilities 22 28,198 28,69% . -
Non-current liahliitles 691,928 643,075 - -
Total liabllifles $83.063 1.018218 11,046 10,900
Net assets 41,052 48,942 402,938 251,475
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PER!OD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 march 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 sAarch 2020
£'000 E000 £'000 £000

Share copital 23 414 262 Ald 262
Share prernium account 402,522 251.414 402,521 251.413
Translation reserve 26,991 27.483 - -
Accumuiated defict {(368,875] {230,197} - -
Tota) equity aftrdbwiabis to &1.052 48 262 402.935 251,675

owners of the Company

The Company has token odvantage of the exemplion contGined within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to present s own Statement of Comprehensive income and related notes. The result for the year
deait with in the financial stoternants of the Company was £nil {2020: £nll}.

The finoncial statements of were cpproved by tha Board of Diraciors and authorised for issue on 21 July 2021,

They were signed on its behalf by:

Sl

John Oldcom
Registered Number 08769974
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FORTHIE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

For the 52

week

period
ended 27 For Ihe 52 week
March pernod ended 28

20211 March 2020

£000 £'000
Net cash {used In)/generated from operciing activilles 24 (108,526} 62,235
Purchases of property, plant and equipment $14,389) 140.923)
Purchases of intangible assets {4,343} 113.144)
Net recoupment fromshows 1,401 1.855
Net cash used in investing activitles o {13,351} {52.212)
New shareholder loans mised 135,000 £9.370
Proceeds from share issue 151,260 -
Repayments of bank bomowings {85.5004 -
Repayrment of obligations under finance leases {11,094) 118,028]
intevest received 1,546 22
Intevest paid {20.996) {22,917}
Net cash generaled by lnancing actlivities . 170216 28.447
Net increase in cash and cosh equivalenfs 48,339 38,470
Cash and cush equivalents at baginning of pefiod 139.045 98,956
Net increqse in cash ond cash equivalents 48,339 38,470
Foreign exchange {lass)/gain on cash 7 __{1.972} 1.639
Cash and cash equivclents at end of period 17 185,432 1.32.065

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in canjunction with these finoncicl statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

General infarmation

international Entertainment Holdings Umited (the "Group™) is g private Company limited by shares,
incarporated in the United Kingdom under the Companias Act and s registerad in England and Wales. The
addrass of the registered office is 28 $t. Gearge Strest, London, W1S ZFA, United Kingdom,

The principal activities of the Compaony and its subsidiaries [the Group} and the nature of the Group's

operations are set out inin the strategic report on pages 1 to 22,

Thase financiol statements are presented in pounds stering because that i the cumrency of the primory

economic environment in which the group operates.
Adoeption of new and revised standards

Amendments 1o IFR3s that are mandatorily effective for the curent period

in the cument year, the Groug has applied amendments 1o IFRSs issued by the international Accounting
Standards Beard {1ASB) that cre mandatenly effective for an accounling pericd that begins on or ofter |

January 2020,
The adoption of these omendments in the year did not have a matesial impact on the financial statements,
New and revised IFRSs In lssue but not yet effective:

At the cate of authorisation of these financidl statements the Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

- Amendmants to A5 | - Classification of liabilities as curent or Non-current
- Armendments to (AS 3 - Referance to the Conceptual Fromewark
- Amendments to [AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Eslimates
- Amendments to IAS 12 - Defered Taxrelated to Assets ond Liabilities
- Amendments to |AS 14 - Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before intended use
- Amendments to |AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfiling a contract
- Arnendrments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
IFRS 16— COVID-19 Related Rent concessions
- IFRS 17 - Ilsuranca cortracts
- Annualimpicvements 1o IFRS standards 2018 ~ 2020 (IFRS |, IFRS ¢, IFRS 16, IAS 41}

The Directors are curently evaiuating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and
interpretations but do not expect them to have a material impact on the Group operation or results
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Slgniicant accounting policles

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemationat Fnancial Reporting
Standards [IFRSs). The finonclal statements have olso been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the European Union ond thersfore the Group financial statements comply with Arficte 4 of the ElUl IAS

Ragulation,

The Company has taken advantage of the exemplion contgined within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to present its own Stofement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The profit for the yaar
dealt with in tha finoncial statements of the Company was £nil {2020: £nil).

The tinancial statements have béen prepared on the historical cost bosis. except for financial instruments
that are mecured ot fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost s generally basad on the fair value of the considerction given in exchange for goods

and services,

Fair vaive is the price that wouid te received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markat participants ot the measurement date, regordiess of whether that price s
directly observable cor estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a ligbility, the Group takes into accounlt the characteristics of the asset or kability if market participonts
would take those charactedstics into account whan pricing the asset of liabllity at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement andfor discioswre purposes in these consolidoted finoncicd stalements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment fransactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2. leasing fransactions that are within the scape of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities fo
fair value but are net fair value, such as net realisable value in [AS 2 or vaiue inuse N IAS 34,

Opergling resulls

The operating results Include tfransactions up to and including the Saturday on or preceding 31 March of
eqch period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the fnancial statements of the Compary and entitias
controlled by the Company (ils subsidiaries}. Contral is achieved when the Company has the power over
the investee. is exposed, or has righls, to vaeiable returmns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability o use s power to affect its retums.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income from the dote the Company goins contral untii the date when he
Company ceases to conirol the sutssidiary,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting pelicies {(conlinued)

Basls of consoidation (confinued)

Al infragroup ossets and ligbilities, equity, incorne, expensas and cash flows reloting 1o transactions
beatween the memipers of the Group are eliminatad on consolidation,

Non-controlling interests in subsiciaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein, Those
intarests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests are initicdly measured at the
non-contralling interesly' pruportionata share of the far vaive ¢t the acguiree's identificble net assets,
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of nan-contraling interesls & the amount of thoase interests
ot inltial recognition pius the non-controling interests” share of subsequent changes in eguity.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidicres are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured ot fair value. Acquisition-reiated costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurrad.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration fransferred, the omount of any non-
controling interest in the acguiree, and the foir value of the gcouirer’'s praviously held equity interest in the
acquire (if any) over the net of tha acquisition-date amounts of the identificble assets acquired and the
licbilities assumed.

Contingant consideration is meaured ot its acquisition-date foir value ond inciuded os part of the
consideration tronsferrad in a business combination, Changas in fair vaiue of the contingent cansideraticn
that qualify as medasurement period adjustmerts are adiusted relrospectively, with comesponding
adjustrents agaoinst goodwill, Measurement padod adjustmants are adjustments that arise from additional
information oblgined dwing o maximum period which cannot axcesd onea year from the acquisition data
aboau! facls and circumstanceas thot existed gt the aequisilion date, Where chonges occur to contingent
consideration thot is classified ar an asset or abiity, thal do not quolity as measurement period adjustments,
the centingent consideration is remeasured af subsequent reporting dates with the coresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. To the extent that the terms of contingent corsideration arangements
include service condilions, considerafion is freated os a cost of employment and s recognised over the

pericd to which the sesvice conditions relate.
The Group reports provisional amounts until the measurement perod is completed.
Invastments

Irvvastmants in subsidiaries are valued at Cost less provision for impairment,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved}
FOR |HE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting pollcles {continued)

Assoclates and joint anangements

An associale is an entily over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
en interest in o joint venture, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operaling

policy decisions of the investes but is not conlrol or joint control over those policies.

A joint amongement s an arangement of which two or mare parties have joint contiol Jeint control is the
cortractually agreed sharing of control of an avangement, which exists orly when decisions about the
relevant activities |i.e. octivities that significantly affect the retums of the arrangement) require the ungnimous
consent of the parties sharing conlrcl. Joint arangemaents are classified into two typaes - joint oporations ond
joint verdures.

A joint gpergtion is a joint amangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (ia,
joint operators] hove rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joinl
venture & q joint arongement whereby the partics that have joint control of the arangement (i.e. joinl
ventures} hove rights fo the net assets of the arangement. The type of joint arangement is gssessed by
considenng its rights and obligations, by considering the structure and legal form of the arangement, the
confractual terms ogreed to by the parties to the arangement and, when reievanl, other facts and

circumstances.

The assets and liakilities {ond related revenues and expenses) of joint operations ore tecognised in proportion
to the interest in the arangement.

The resulls and assets and liabilities of associctes and joint ventures are incomporated in these finoncial
statermnents using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is inilally recognised in the consclidated Statement of Financial Posilion at cost and adjusted thareafter to
recognite the Group's share of the profit or loss ond other comprehensive Inceme of the associote. When
the Group's share of losses of an associote exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includaes
any fong-term interasts that, in substonce, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate], the
Groun disconfinues recognising its share of furiher losses. Addlional iosses are recegnised only to the extont
that the Group has incured legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is nol amortised but is reviewed for impaiment at least annually.

For the purpase of impaiment testing. goodwil s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
[CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Casn-generating units to which goodwill
has been dlocated ore tested for impaimaent annually, or more frequently when there & an indication that
the unit may be impaired, If the recoverable amount of the cash-generdling unit i5 less than its camyving
omount, the impaiment loss is alccated first o reduce the camying amount of any gooadwill allacated o the
unit ond then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amount of each asset in the
unit, Animpairment loss recognised for goodwil is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THF 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting pollclas (continued)

Goodwll! ([continved)

Prior to the cument year the Group's two Germman subsiciaries, BB and Mehr, were treated as separate CGUs.
This policy has been changed to recagnise BB and Metr as one combined Mainland Europe CGU, dligning

the CGUs to the management's divisional view of the Group's activities.
impakment of non-current asseis

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the canrying arnounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is ary indication that those ossats have suffared on impaiment loss. Goodwill is
reviewead for impairment at least annually.

Far the purpose of iImpairment testing, goodwill is allocated, at acguisition, to the cosh generating units ar
group of units that are expeched to benefit from that business cornbination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the camying amount of the asset under consideralion edceads its
recoverable amount, Recoverable omount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and voiue in use.,
In assessing value in use, the estimated fture cash flows are discounted to their present value using o
discount rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the fsks specific to

the asset.

it the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the corying amount of the unit, the
irnpaiment 10ss is cllocated first 1o reduce the camying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amount of each assel in the unit, An impalrment loss

recognised for goodwill is not reverted in a subsequent period.
Investments in shows and co-production arangements

investments in shows are stated at cost less amounts recouped ta date, and provisicns for any amounts

which the directors do not believe are recoverable.

Production arangements cre reviewed on a production-by-production basis and reated bosed on the

principles outiined above as elther o subsidiary, on associate or joint venfure of joint cirangement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies {continved)

Froperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and accumulatod impairments.
Depreciation &k provided at rates calculated to wiite off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual

valus, on a shraight-ine basks over their expected useful lives as follows:

Freetold buildings 4010 50 years
Leasshold property Shorter of leasahold lerm and wseful life of 40 to 30 years
Fixtures and fittings 410 10 years, or over the periad to the end of the lease of the thealre

if this is shorter
IT EqQuiipment 3to Syeors

No depreciction i applied to the cost of assets in e course of construction. frechold fand is not
depreciated.

Intangible assels

intangible assets all have finite lives and are carried at cost less accumulated amertisclion ond
vecumulated impairment 1osses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated
useful lives and is recognised in the administralive oxpenses line item.

The amortisation period for software is 4 years. The estimated life of other intangible assets i considered on
an assel-by-asset basis and is up 1o 10 yeaors.

Inventory

Inventory is valved at the lower of cost and net redlisable value affer making due allowance for chisolete

and slow-maoving items.
Financial Instruments

Fincncial assefs and financial iabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
when the Group becomes o party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument and are initially measured
at tair value. Transaction costs thot are drectly attributable to the goquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial fiabifities, other than finonciol assels and financial ligbilities ot fair value through profit or koss
["FVTPL™}, are added to, or deducted kom. the fair vaiue of the financial assets or financial Babiities on initicl
recognition. Transaction ¢osts direcily athibutable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liobilities
al fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Slgnificant accounting policles (conlinued)

financial inskruments {continuved)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash ond cash scuivalents comprise cash balances, calt deposils and escrow-type accounts. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an infegrat part of the Group's cash management are
included gs g component of cash and cash equivatents for the purpose of the Statement of cash flows.

Trade receivables ond accrued income

Trade recelvabies ond occrved income dre classiilied os loans and receivobles and gre measured af
omortised cost using the effective inferest methed, less any mpairmmertd. Since frade receivobles and
accrbed income are typicolly due within one year, and the effect of any effective interest is immaterial, this

aquates to initial camying value less any impairment.
Borrowings

Loans and Bomowings are initially measwred at Fair value, net of transaction casts, They are subsequently
measured b amortised cost using the effective interest method. with inferest expense recognised on an
effective vield basis. The effective interest rote is a method of calculating the amortised cost of o financial
liability and of allccated interast expanse over the elevant period. The affective interest rate is fhe rata that
exactly discounts estimated future cash poyments through the expecled life of the Inancial lability, or,
where appropngte. a shaster period o the net carmrving amount on inttict rec ognition,

rade poyables and accruals

Trade payables and accruals are classified as loans and aceivables and are measured af amorised cost
using the effective interest method. Since rade payables and accruals are typically due within one vear,

and the effective of any effective interast is immaterial, this equates 10 infticl camying value,
Fnonciol guarantees

Financial guarantee confracts ore accounted for s insurance contracts,

Defomed income

Amounts received by the Group for services performed in fulure are classified as deferred income ond
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive iIncome when the senvice is performed.

Retirerment beneafils

Paymants to defined conifbution retiement benefit schemes are recogniiad as an expense when
empioyees have rendered service enlitling thern o the contributions. Differences betweeh contibutions
payable in the period and cantributions actually paid are shown o3 either occruals or prepayments in

the balonce sheet,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticont accounting policles [continved)

Revenue

Revanua is recognised ¢t the far value of the considoration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods ond services provided in the nomal course of business, net of discounts,

VAT and other sales-rélated taxes, Revenue for the Group compiisaes severol elements, including:
Venue reniol and proguction-refated services

Charges 1o productions in respect of services provided {such as venue rental and staffing) are recognised
net of sales taxes as those serviceos are provided.

Revenue from productionrelaled services is recogrnised at the date of performance of the show, until
which fime it is held on the Statement of Financial Position as Deferred income,

Fromctional services

The Group acts as promater for sell-produced shows and shows produced by third paries. Revenue from
these services is recognised ot fair value of consideralion received, net of sales taxes, ot the date that the
promotiondl services are provided.

Marketing sevvices
Revenue from the provision of marketing services is recognised at the fair value of the consideration

received or recelvable. The for value of consideration takes into account trade discounts, settlement
discounts and volume rebates. Markeling services revenue lsrecognised net of sales taxes over the period
that services are provided, or as recoverable costs are incurred, in accordance with the lerms of the
contractual agreement. When recorded marketing services revenuea exceeds the amounts invoiced to
client, the excess is classified as accrued income.

Ticket sales

Revenue from ticket sales represants tha revenue eamed from commiissions, credit cord charges and
similar charges. This revenue is recognised al the dale the ticket is soid.

Revenue from ticket sales where the Group is acting as sefing agent (whether for its own theaires or For
other UK venues] inciudes booking fees, cammissions, and similar additiondl Income charged at the point
of sale. These amounts are recognised net of any sales taxes at the ransaction date. Such revenus is
recognised as an agent rather than principal fransaction, ond so excludes the face volue of the tickels
soid.

Relal sales

Revenue frormn concession sales 1o customers at the Group's venues is recognised net of sales tazes at the
paint of sale.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK FERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting policles [conflnued)

Ravenve {continved)

Other revenue

The Group pravides various other services on an ad hoc basis, all of which are related ta its principal activity.
Related revenue is recogrised at {dir value over the period thot such services are performed ond the

parformance obligations are met.
Joint operations

Inrelation to co-production avongements. where a controling o joint opearation nterest s held, revenue
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no controifing interest & held tumover
represents net iIncome from productions. Where equily accounting is applied, the share of profit of loss
disclosed inthe "share of resuits of associates and joint ventures™ line,

Government gronts

Income From govertrment grants is recognised as defemed income ond relecsed o the Consolidated
Statement of Camprehensive Income as the atteched conditions are solisfied. Where the grand ralates to
procurement of an assel, the amount received s released to the Corsolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incomea over the useful life of the asset against associated depreciation.

A malerial grant reloted o assets s presenied in the statement of fnanclal position as a deduction from
the camying value of the related asset, with a consequent reduclion in the annual charge for depreciation,

COVID-19 related job retention schemes are considersed within the scope of 1AS 20, with furlough receipts
recorded o5 a reduction in payrol expenses.

IFRS 14 Leases

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which compsises the nitial amount of the lease liability adjusted for

any lease payments maode at of before the commencement date. plus cny initial direct costs incuned.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated wing the straight-ine method from the commencement
date, The estimaled useful lives of the right-of-use gssets are determined oh the same basis as those of
property, plant and equipment.

The lease fiability [s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments thot are not paid af the
commencement date, discounted using the Group”s incremantal borowing rate, The iability is subsequently

adjusted for any re-measurermnant of the lease liability resulfing from reassessments or fease modifications.

The Group presents right-of-use astets in 'property, plant and equipment” and lease iabikties in “finance
lecses' in tha statament of financiol position,

Sensitivity (nternal Lie



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOCD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significont occounting policles {conlinued)

Shorl-term leases and leases of low-value assefs

The Group has elecied not to recognise nght-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these legses as an experisa on a stralght-ine basis over the lease term.

Fareign currencies

For the purpose of the consolidataed financial statemants, the resulls and fnancial position of each Group
Company are expressed in pounds steding, which is the functional curency of the Company, and the
prasantational curency for the consolidated financial statements.

wmonetary assets ond liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies are transiated into sterling al rales
of exchange ruiing at the balance sheet date. Transactions inforeigh cumencies are ransiated Into sterling
at the rate ruling on the date of the fransaction, Such exchange goins and losses are rec ognised in profil or
loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses on loans that are eftectively investment instruments, such as where o
parent Company makes a loan with no repayment terms to o subsidiary holding Compary as part of
acquisition considergtion, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Rasulls of overseas subsidiaries are transiated at average monthly rates. Assets and liabiiities of overseas
subsidiarios are transiated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date. Such exchonge differences arsing
are recognised inthe translation reserve and the Statement of Changos in Equity.

QOpaerating profit

Operating profit is statad after the share of rasuits of associates but before finance income and costs, other

gains and losses and taxes.

Finance income

Finarnce income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it 5 eamned.
finance cosls

Finrance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pericd inwhich they are incured.
Cther galns and losses

Other gains and losses are recoghised in profit arloss in the period in which they are incured.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202)

1. Significant accounting pollicies (continued)

Pre-Production rected costs

Expenses incurmed prior o o production going live which are directly atiibutabie to the production of the
show are categerised into either property plant and equipment and depreciated over the assumed wseful
Ife of the show, or 'Other nontangible ossets’, which are released to the Profit and Loss over the show's
usefut life based upon the ralio of the curent pariod's revenues fo the estimated tolal revenues {Total
Production Revenue) for sach production. Whers estimates of Tolal Production Revenue decreases.
amortization of pre-production costs may be accelerated, Conversely, it estimates of Total Production
Revenues were {0 increose then amartization of costs moy be slowed.

Taxation
The tax expense reprasents the sum of the tax cumently payable and defered tax.

Current and defemed tox are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relatg to tems that are
recagnised in other comprehensive income or direcily in equity, in which case the curent and defered tax
are gise recognised in other comprehensiva incame or directly in equity respectively. Where curent tax or
defered tox anzes o the initiol accounting for ¢ biusinass combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting lor the business combinalion.

Current fax is bated on taxable profit for the period calculoted using tax rates that hove been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Defened tax is recognised on temporary differences between the camrying amounts of assefs and Tabilities
in the consolidated finoncial statements and the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable proft. Deferred lax iabiities ore generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred lox assets are generally recognised for oll deductible lemporary differences to the exient that it is
probable that taxable profits will be avaiabile agairs! which those deductible temporary differences con
be utilised.

Such defered tax gssels and liabiities are not recognised if tihe temporary difference anses from the initicl
tecognition of goodwill, from the initial recognition (olher than in a business combingtion] of assets and
licbilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxoble profit nor the accounting profit o investments in
subsicliaries and associates, and inferests in joint ventures, where the Group is able to control the reversot of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will net reverse in the foreseeabls
future. Tha amount of defemed tax provided s based on the expected manner of realisation ¢r settlernent
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. using tox rates enacled or substantively enacted at the
financial period end date. A deferrad tax assat is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future

taxable profits will be available agairst which the osset can be utilised.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {confinued)

Provisions

Frovisicns are recognised when the Group has a present obligation [legal or consluctive] as aresult of 9
past evert, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a refiable eslimate
can be made of the amount of the cbiligation.

2. Critical accounting jJudgements and key sources of estimation unceralnty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1. the Directors e
racirad 10 moks judgements, estimales and assumptions about the carying amounts of assets and
tiabifities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assurmnptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying ossumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accaounting
estimales are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision offects only thal perod.
or in ihg paniod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects bath current and future periods,

Judgements
Going concemn basis

In order to assess whether it is appropriate for the Group to be reported s a going concem, ihe Birectors
are required to make judgements ragarding the Group's future frading performance. cash generation and
ability to satisty its financial obligations. Having undertoken appropriate enquiries and hoving considered
ihe business activities and the Group's principal risks and uncertainties, the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepared on a going concem basis. Please refer to the Diractors' Report for our delaied
assessment of this matter.

Key sources of esfimation uncertainty

Canying volue of non-curent assels

Impairmaent

The Group assesses the camying values of property, plant and equipment, and intangibie assels annually.
Recoverability is dependent upon assumptions and estimates regarding market conditions, fulure cash

flows and discountrates, known as at the 27 March 2021, A materiol change in assumplions may sgnificcntly
impoact the potential impainment of these ossets.

An extansion to the dark pediod of & manths would not generate an impairment to any of the cash
generating units {CGUs} bt reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% of asset values of the UK, Us,
Germany and Marketing Services CGUs rospactively, Further detall can be found in note 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Revenue

The Group's revenue frorn extemal customers by classification & delailed below:;

52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

201 2020

£000 £000
Venue Rental and Production Reiated Services 10,489 230,068
Promotional & Marketing Services 18,898 115,478
Ticket and Retail Sales 5,456 119,547
Other &.798 11,654
Fotal revenue 41,641 476,747

The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical location is detalled below:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 27 March =ndad 28 March

2021 2020

£000 £000
United Kingdom 21,09 213,847
Rest of Europe 10,949 123,473
North America &,657 129,441
Asia 2.944 2.984
Total revenue 41,641 476,747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK FPERIOD ENDFED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operaling {loss)/proitt

Net loss for the period has been arived at after charging/ {crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13
Deprecialion charge for right-of-use assels -buildings 13
Amaortisation of intangible fiked assets 12
impairment of property, plant and equipment 13
impgirment of intangible assels 12
mpairment of fong torm debtor

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment '3
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 12
inventory writé downs 14
Cperating lease charges

Staff costs é
Finance income 7
Finance costs 8
Interast expense on RS 14 lease liabilities 8

52 week 52 week period
ended 28

period andad

27 March

2021
£000
26,615
8801
1,988

2,816
122
194

7.018

38,487

{1.546)

47,682

6.390

March 2020

£000
21439
8,759
1.974
7154
7776
8.9867

2,151
137.810
{1.344]
30,926
6,547

5. Audilor's remunarotion

The analysis of the auditor's remuneration is s foliows:

52 week pedled 52 week period

ended 27 March endead 28
2021 warch 2020
£900 £00C

Fees payable o the Company's auditor and their associates for the audit of:
The consolidated and parent fincmcial statements 463 418
The subsidiary financial statements 50 65
Total qudit fees 513 483
Taxation complonce servicas - 71
Taxgalion advisory serfvices - i
Tolal non-avdlt fees - al
Total 513 564
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

& Stalf cosls

The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) wes:

52 week perlod 57 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020
Directors 5 5
Venue siaff 3176 4,349
COther 1,103 1,524
Yotal monthly average number of employeas 4,284 5,880

The averaoge number of individuals with an employment contract in piace during the period is
4.698. Of tis population, the total menthly average number of employees paid through the
payrol during the period is st out inthe tabla cbove,

Thelr aggregote remunaration comprised: £'000 £'000
Wages ond salafes 314 125844
Social security costs 5,702 9,703
Other persion costs }.&44 2,441
Totol aggregote remuneration 33,497 137,810

Current year siaff costs are presented net of income from government suppart schenes totalling £41.3
mitiion (2020: £nil).

Direciors disclosed here are only those employed by the Group. so exclude boaord members employed by

the Group's sharehoiders,

The average monthly numbser of employees of the Company was five, being the executive directors
[2020; five].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LINMITED
NOTES TO THE AINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Stalff costs (conlinued)

Remuneration of direclars and key management personnel
the remuneration of the directors and key managemenlt personnel of the Group s set oul below:

52 woek perfod 52 week period
ended 27 Maich ended 28 March

20 2020
£000 £000
Remuneration of directors:
Salaries, Fees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 1,045 1,501
Money purchase pension contribulions 11 20
Total remuneration of directors 1.056 1.521
Remunergtion of directors ond key management personnet:
Rernunergtion 2474 3.687
Social securty contributions 9 513
Pension 54 &0
Total remuneration of directors and key management 2.879 4,260

personnal

Key managemeant parsonnel are those who have significant influence over the operational nunning of the
businass. During the psariod, retirament benehts were accruing 1o two 120208 two) directons in raspect of
defined contribution schermes.

The highes! paid director received remuneration ol £575000 [2020: £935,000). The value of the
Company's contribulions paid to a defined confibution pension scheme in respect of that individueal
amauniled to £4,000 {2020: £10,000).

During the period, directors and key monagaement personnel received totcd compensation for loss of office
totalling £1.157.000 (2020: £ril), or which social security of £143,000 {2020: £nil} was paid by the Group.

Fensions

The Group opercates defined confribulion pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
frorm those of the Group In on independenlly odministered tund. The pension cosl charge represents
contibutiors payable by the Group to the fund and amounted 1o £1.644000 {2020 £2.441.000}.
Contribtions totaling £62%.000 [2020: £340,000) were payable to the fund at the balance sheel date.

Employee benefit irust

The Group has no direct empiloyee share scheme or share-based payment arangement. However, certain
employees of the Group have acquired an interest in the equity of the holding Company via an employvee
beneafit trust in bath the cuent and prior periods.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

7. Fnanceincome

52 week 52 week period

period ended ended 28
27 March 2021 Moach 2020
£'a00 £000
Interest incoma 1.544 1.324
Unwindgding of discount on long term receivables and - 20
payables
Finance income 1,544 1,344
8. Finance costs
52 week period 52 wesk period
ended 27 March ended 28 Mcrch
20 2020
£'000 £000
Interest an loans from parent undertakings 1,020 1.841
intarast on bank overdrafts and loans 25,582 22,084
interest on obligations under finonce leases 4,995 4,957
Interest expense an IFRS 14 lease liabilities 4,390 8,547
Amortisation of financing fees 2,597 3.780
Fareign exchonge loss/{gain) 13.418 {1,738}
Finance costs 54,072 37,473
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 7021

¢,  Taxofion

Ancilyss of tax credit in the peried

52 week 52 wook period

period ended ended 28
27 March warch 2020
2027

Current tax £'000 £000
Tax |credit]) £ charge on loss for the period [173} 431
Prior year tax adustment [1.333; (4570}
Foreign tax in the period - 967
Total current tax (1.5064; (3.172

Deferred tax 22
Defemrod tax credit current year {18.097) {8,333}
Change in tax rate - 2,760
Adjustments in respect of prior perdods 1,419 763
Total defesred fax {6.677) (4.810)
Tax on loss {8.183] {7.982]

UK corporation taxis calculated at 19% (2020: 19%} of the estimated taxable profit for the period. Tazation
for other junisclictions is calculated at the rales prevailing in 1he respective juwisdictions.

There is Nil income tax impoct (2020; Nl for items within other comprehensive income,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

¥. Taxaflon {confinved)

The credit for the period con be reconciled to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income &

follows.

52 week period 52 week period
ended 28 ended 30 March
March 2021 2020
£000 £000
Loss before tax {147,135} [33,907)

Loss multipied by standard rale of Corporation tax in the UK of
19%, {2020: 19%) {27.956) {6.442)

Effects of:

Expenses nol deduclible for tax purposes [141] 3,564
Adjustrments to tax charge in respect of prior periods 10,087 (3.807]
Non-qualifying depreciation 728 -
Effect of different rate for deferred lax - 2,760
Effect of overseqs tax rates £2,683) (3,402
Theatre tax credit [173) [%35])
Change In unrecognised defered tax assets 11,370 -
Effect of foreign exchange {15 -
Cther reconciling differences o - 280
Tax cradi lor he pedod {8.,183) {7.982)

Tha closing UK defemred tax fability as at 27 March 2021 has been calcuiated at 19% reflecling the tax rate
at which the defemed tax liability is expected to become payabie.

An increase in the LK corporation tax rate to 25%. effective rom 1 April 2023, was onnounced in Rnance Bil
2021 which received roval assent on 10 June 2021 becoming Finance 8 2021, This rate had nat been
substantively enacied at the balonce sheet date and theratore is not reflected in the tax calculations for
the year ended 27 March 2621. The impact of the rate change from 19% o 25% would be to increase the
defemed tax liabilly as ot 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 to £14.320,000.

Deferred tax lighilties have not been recognised in respect of losses in overseas subsidiaries as it i not
probable that future taxable profit will be ovailchle against which the unused tax losses can be utilised,

Deferred tox assets on cared forward vnutilised losses in Australia of £2,392,000 {2020: £2,.097.000), Germany
of £29,575,000 [202G. £10,819,000 recognised) and the US of £30,203,000 {2020: £ni] have not been
recognised.

There are caried Forward unutiised tax losses in the UK of 87,382,000 {2020: £351.000). A deferred tax asset
of £14,536.000 (2020: £n¥} has been racognised as it is expected tha! these losses will be ulilised within the
next two yaaqrs.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

10. Investmenis

The directly and indirecty held subsidiaries are listed in note 33.

Group As of 52week As ot 52 week
period ended peviod ended
27 March 2021 28 march 2020
£'000 E0D0

Cosl and net book value
Listed nvestments - i
Uniisted Investrments 2178 4,355
Investments 2,178 4,356
Company Asal 52 week As Qt 52 week
perlod ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Cost and net book value
Subsidiary investments 413,835 262,575
Investments 413,835 242,575

The Group's unlisted investments relate to its investment in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, a
company incorporated in the United Stales of America of which the Group owns 1.08%.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Interests in associates ond joint ventures - Group

As af 52 week Asaf 52 week
pericd ended  period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Interests in joint venhures 2631 515
Interests in associates 697 1004
Inferests In associates and joint ventures 3,528 1,519

Joint ventures

The Group has interests in severdl individudlly immateriol joint ventures which take the form of both
productions and businesses. Fach invesiment 15 structured as a separate vehicle and the Group has a
residual interest in the net assets of the invastrnent, Accardingly. the Group has classified its interests os joint
vantures, For some of the productions, the Group & entitied 10 less than S0% of the production aarnings
however the production agreement requires unanimous consent in decision making resulting in joint contral.

The following companies have a year-end date different to the Group’s accaunting financiat vear end of
27 March 2021,

- HP West End: 31 October 20217
JB UK Towr It 31 December 2021
Train Times SF LP: 31 Decemiber 2021
- Train Times Braadway LP: 31 Decembar 2021

This is as aresult of the entities not falling under IEHL hence vear end dotes may need {o suif the requirements

of all shareholders.

For the purposes of applying the equity meathod of accounting, the financial statements of HP West End {tor
the year ended 31 October 2020], and B UK Tour ll, Train Time SF LP, Train Times Broadway LP {for the year
anded 3! December 2020} have been wsed.

The jeint ventures are not restricted in thelr ability t6 transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends,

or to repay loans or advances by the entity.

The following table cnalyses, in aggregate, the camying amount and share of total comprehensive income

of these Joint Ventures.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11, Interests In assoclates and joint ventures - Group (continued)

Canying amount ol interests In joint ventures

As at 52 week
peiiod ended
27 March 2021

£000
2331

As ot 52 week
pefiod ended
28 sMarch 2020

£000
518

Share of total comprehensive income

{249}

{702

Associates

Carnrying amount of interests in associales

As al 52 week
period ended
27 march 2021

£'000
6397

As at 52 week
period ended
28 March 2020

£2000
1,004

Share of fokal comprehensive income
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intangible assets - Group

Total
Assels under Other - intangible
Scftware  construction Intanglbles Assels  Goodwill Total
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000

Cost
At 30 March 201% 14919 - 6,498 23,417 F75554 399,371
Additions 2929 3292 7,447 13,648 - 13,648
Trarsfers 3,222 §1.222) - - - -
Exchange differences 3 - 462 445 4,545 5,030
At 28 March 2020 23,073 70 14,407 37.550 380,519 418,049
Additions 1.45) 2892 20 4,343 1,434 §.7%8
Disposok {1,084} - (3.86%) {4,953) - (4.953)
Exchange differences {58} - {758) (815) (11,627} (12,443)
Al 27 March 2021 23,382 2,942 ¥.800 36.144 370.324 404 470
Accumulated amortisation and impoairment
At 30 March 2019 8,245 - 3.207 11,472 7.479 18,9510
Charge for the 52 week period 1,541 - 433 1,974 - 1.974
Impairment - - 7774 1.774 - 7.774
Exchange diffgrences - - - - 310 g
Al 28 Mareh 2020 9,804 - 11,414 21,222 7.789 29,01
Charge for the 52 week period 1,217 - 71 1,788 . 1.988
Cisposdls {1,003) - {3.828) {4.831) - {4,831)
Exchange differences {47} - {797} {844) {347} {1.191)
Al 27 March 2021 10,673 - 6,842 17,535 7,442 24977
Comying amount
At 28 March 2021 12,70% 2,942 2938 18,509 342,884 381,493
At 28 March 2020 13,247 70 2.9 16,328 372,730 389,058

The amount of expenditures recognised in the camying amount of assets under construction is £2.% milfion
{2020: £3.3 million}.

Other infangible assets relote to show rights costs and pre-produciion relared costs.

The Company has no Intangible assets {2020 £n),
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intanglible assats — Group (continved}

Goodwilt acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition. te the cash generating units
[CGUs) or group of units that are expected to benefit from thatl business combination, The carrving amount
af goodwill has been dllocated to the following CGUs:

At 27 Mowch

mn

£000

United Kingdom 249,834
USA &0,074
t~ainland Europe 327
Marketing services 13.757
Tatal goodwill 342,584

The Group tests goodwill and Intangible assets annualty for impainment, of more frequertly if there aro
indications that goodwill might be impaired. Property, plant and equiprent i also tested for impairment if
there are indicators of impaiment, which there have been in the curent and prior yeor, The recoverable

amounts of the CGUs and the group of units are detemined from vaive in use calculalions.

The impaiment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Mainland Europe and Marketing Services do not indicate
any impairment against goodwill, other inlangibles or property, plant ond equipment.

The kay assumplions and resuting attnbutes of the impakment review are os follows:

Unfled Mainland  Marketing
EMs Kingdom USA Evicpe Services
Goodwil 2458 601 39.2 13.8
PPE / Other intangibles 2478 94.8 44.0 87
Total assets 497.5 154.9 852 225
WA CC assumption 10.4% 110% 10.0% 10.4%
GDP growih 20% 20% 2.5% 2.0%
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued])
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Inlangible assets - Grovp (continued}

The values for the key ossumptlions wete armived af by taking into consideration historical information ond
componing to extemal sources where appropriate, such os market rates for discount factors. GDP growth
rates are used s the terminal value growth rate in calculating the net present values of the respective

CGUs, while the inflation rates are qpplied as the base growth factar for yaars 2 to 4.

guvdgeted cash flows - the colculation of value in use has been based on the cash Hows forecast in the

Group's latest five year plan.

The five year plan assumes that COVID-19 continues 1o disrupt the Group through FY22, with varying re-
opening dgtes acress our temitories starting from October 2021, The Group's cash flows are forecaost to retum
10 pre-COVID- 19 lavels in FY23.

The following sensitivities were applied 1o the impairment test:

Sensitivity 1 - dark perlod: A plausible extension to the dark period of & months would not generate an
impaimnent to any of the cosh generating units (CGUs) but reduces headrcom o 21%, 103%, 289% and 122%

of asset values of the UK, US, Mainiand Europe and Marketing Services CGUs respectively.

Sansltivity 2 - discount rate; A five percertage points incregse in the discount rate would create an
impairment to the UK CGU and reduce headroom 1o 34%, 143% and 51% of asset values of the US, Mainkand
Europe ond Marketing Services CGUs respectively.

The increase in discount rate required o create an impaimment to each CGU s UK 1%: US 8%:; Mainland
Europe 21%:; and Marketing Services 10%.

This sensitivity was aiso tested or a venue level. A five percentage points incregse in the discount rate

would create impaimments to four UK venues, one US venue and one Mainland Europe venue.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Property, plant and equipment - Group

Right Long-tetm Short-lemm Fixtures
Freehold ofUse Ieosehold Ileasehold  Assetsunder and
property Asset property property  construction titings Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 30 March 20019 163,606 - 140,488 22,347 7.702 74137 408,500
Additions 8,221 10.228 592 8,553 16,145 43,737
IFRS 16— Right-of-use gsset - B7.5%0 - - - - 87,590
Transkers - - - - {10,257) 10,257 -
_Exchange differences o %02 3,594 2,581 ._t370) {53 (210} 6,444
At 28 March 2020 172,729 91,184 153,497 22,589 5945 100329 545273
Additions 2,258 - 240 25 6,465 1,400 10,358
Disposals {204] [255) {119} {783) - {25975} [27.338)
Transter 63 - - - {8,878 8813 -
_Exchange differences {1448 (5809 (z.e41) : (28] (2403 _(17.529)
Al 27 March 2021 173,398 85,120 145,777 21,431 3.504 82,164 J51L.7%
Accumulated depreciation and impalment
At 30 March 2009 16,834 - 26,740 4,347 - 22114 77.037
Charge for the 52 week period 3,429 8,75¢% 5,053 598 - 12,359 30,138
Impairment - - - - - 7.154 7154
_Exchange differences - : 84 - - 295 479
Al 28 March 2020 20,265 8,75¢ 32,477 4,945 - 48,922 115348
Charge for the 52 week period 4,514 8,801 5334 483 - 14,284 35418
Disposals (194} - 21} {770] - i23.445) (24,520)
Exchange differences (275} (479) {1.653) - - _[1,540)_ (3.847)
Al 27 March 2021 26,310 17,08% 35,067 4,458 - 38,201 1227
Camying amount
Al 28 Moarch 2021 147,088 48,037 109,710 17,173 3,504 43,963 308479
At 28 March 2020 152,444 82,425 121,020 17,444 5,945 51,407 430905

The amouni ot expenditures recognised in the camying amount of assets under consiruction s £5.9 million

{2020: £8.4 million}.

The Company has no property, plant and equipment {2020: Enit}.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coniinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Inventories - Grovp

As at 52 As gt 52 week
waak petlod  period ended
ended 27 23 March 2020

March 2021
£'900 £000
Finished goods af cost 662 1.395
Inventory provision {157} {351)
Finished goads and goads lor resale 505 1,044

The Group wrote off £194,000 of inventory during the year (2020; £nilj.

The Compony has no Inventory (2020 £nil),

15. Investments In shows - Group

As al 52 weelk  As O 52 waek
period ended period endsd
27 march 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £00C
Investments In shows 2393 3,794

Invesimants in shows reflect the Group's investmeant in productions in which it does not have a contralling

interest.

The Company has no investments in shows (2020: £nil),
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Trode and otherveceivables - Group

As of 52 week Asat 52 week
period ended pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£000 £000
Motes receivable 2,656 10,946
Oiher non-cument re;elvobles 12775 12,352
Amounis recelvable after mare than 12 months 22,431 23,318

The notes receivable balance comprises amounts recelvable from counterparties in relation to the
financing strocture of the redevelopment of The Hudson Thealre via a well-.usad arrangerient creciod by
the IS government 1o encourage financial institdions to Invest into redevelopment of historic buildings.
interesl & receivable af rates belween 0.48% and 0.5%. These will be recoverabla from the courtorpartios
either over the life of the Instrurment or by fransfer of leasehaold intarests. The long-termm receivable relates to
¢ balance acquired os part of the ACE acquisition and s o fee for theatre development services provided
which will be poid over g number of years.

As ot 52 week Asat 52week
perflod ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £'000
Tradle receivables 14,989 29,385
Prepayments and accrued income 5,611 LR ¥-13
Corporation tax receivable 4,747 5037
VAT recelvable 3982 -
Other receivables 2,031 16,513
Amounty recelvable within 12 months 39.3460 £2,554

Other receivabies inciude a related party balance of £3.7 milion due from the Group’s parent company,
IE luxco S.arl {Luxembourg) {2020 £3.7 million).

The Company had no frade ond other receivables (2020: £nil}.

Al impairad trode receaivables have been provided to the extent they are believed not to be recoverable,
The maxirmum exposure to credit sk ot the reporting date is the fair volue of each ckass of receivable, The
Group does not hold any colioteral as security. Assels which are neither past due nor impaired ore

considered fJully recoverable,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

16. Trade and other recelvabiles - Group [confinved)

Anatysis of frade receivable ageing

Credit fisk management

Credit sk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its conlractual obiligations resulfing in finoncial
loss to the Groun. As of 2B March 2020, some of the Graun's frade receivables were due and/or past due
but nat impaired, Thase relate to a number of independent customers with no matsral concantration within
any one customer and no custornars wha arg of particularty high risk of dafealt. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

As at 52 weelt As af 52 week

pwiod ended 27  period ended
March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000
Up te 3 months 4.64% 19,338
Jto é manths 234 2929
Qver § months 16,720 10,316
Total 15,423 32,583

Asof 27 March 2021, the Group ciso held past due rade receivables which had heen provided for

As ot 52 week As at 52 week
pericd ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Up to 3 months 123 2078
310 6 months 130 217
Cver 6 months a8t 203
Total 434 319

Under IFRS 9, the Group is required to uliise objeclive evidence as well as consider forward logking
information, such as the economic conditions in the countries where the Group operates, and the
probability of default when calculating expected credit losses. The maturity of financial assets is therefore

used as an indicator as to the probability of defauit,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

17. Cash and cash equivalents - Group

As ot 52 week As at 52 week
perikad ended period ended 28
27 March 2021 March 2020
£000 £000
Cash and caosh equivalents held in own accounts 182,872 130,214
Cash and cash equivalents held in escrow 2.540 8.84%
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 139,065
The Company hos £146,000 of cash and cash equivalants [2020: £nil).
18. Trade and other payables - Group
As at 52 week As at 52 week
pertad endad period ended
27 March 28 March 2020
20
£000 £000
Trade payables 25,4346 37,155
Defered income 113,802 142,354
Accruals 35.486 58,474
Cither taxation and social security 2,007 4915
Tax creditor 1981 2,104
Other poyables B 734 15014
Govammeni grants received and not utilised 923 795
Trade and ather payables due within 12 manths 182,571 260,816

The Company has an intercompany payable of £11.0 milion [2020: £10.9 milion) which is repayable on
dermand, na interest is charged.

The other payables balance includes payroll creditors and amounts due o production companies.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

19. Bomowings - Group

Asal 52 weak Asat 52 wesek
period ended pericd ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£'000 £000
Bandc loars - senior dabt 358,000 358,000
Bank loans - revolving credit facility §9,370 6%.370
Tolal senlor debt 427370 427 370
Fair value adjustrnent f unamortised financing fees 16853 14,24}
Bank loans - other - 84,409
Sharehaolder loans 139.17% -
Banmowings 583,407 526,040
Amount dus for settlenmant within 12 months &2.37C &9.370
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 514,037 456,670
Borrowings 583 407 526,040

The bank loans - semor debl are secured by a charge over the assets of Intemational Entertainment
Finance Limited, o subsichary of the Company and the majority of its subsidiary underakings. Thease loains
bear interest af arate which fluciuaies it line with LIBOR with a margin ranging between 4.25% and 4.75%
and are geverned by a senior finance egreement with requisite covenants.

The Group dlso has loans from its shareholders totalling £13%2.2m. inciuding accrued interest {2020; £N7]].
interest is non-cash paying and acarues at fixed rates ranging between 4.0% and 10.0%.

Asaft 52 week As at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£°000 £000
Bonk loans - senior debt 427,370 427370
Bank loans - other - 84,409
Shareholder loans 139,179 -
Fair value adjosiment 18,641 18,661
Unamortized financing fees (1.803} (4.400)
Borrowings 583,407 526,040

The Company does not have any borrowings {2020; £nill.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Qbligations ynder finance leuses ~ Group

As ol 52 As at 52 week
week perlod period ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
Maorch 2021
£'000 £000
Amount due within 12 months
Finance lecses 4211 4,270
IFRS 16 leases 12,182 15,204
Obllguﬁont undey leuse lkabilities 14,393 19,474
As af 52 As at 52 week
waek period period ended 28
ended 27 March 2020
March 2021
£000 £000
Amount due after 12 monlhs
Finance legses B4,554 86,629
IFRS 16 leqses 63,137 71.077
Obllg_cﬁons undar lease Rabliitias 14%.493 157,706

Finance leases - Group

Minimum la0se payments Present value of minimum lease
payments
27 March 2021 28 March 2020 27 march 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year 4,329 4,286 4,211 4,270
Irt the secondt 1o 6fth yaars 17,753 17.578 15,134 14,985
inclusive
Alter five vears 400,673 405,639 73,944 73,476
422,755 427,503 233N 92.731
Less: future finance charges [329,444) {334,435}
93,311 23,044 91,311 72,731
Unamortised finance costs {2.544) {2,143} {2,544} {2,145)
Prasant value of lecse 0,787 50,899 90,747 70.554
obligations
Amgount due within 12 months 4211 4270
Amount due after 12 months 86,554 86,629
%0.767 90,877

The Group leases certain properties under finance fease arrangements. The average lease tarm is 75 years.

The Group does not have the option to purchase the properties for a nominal value at the end of the lease

temms, and the Group's obligations under the finance leasas are secured over the properties being leased,

Interest rates underdying il abligations under finance leases are implicit rates ranging from 53% 1o 58%

[2020: 5.3% 1o 5.8%).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obfigations under finance leases - Grovp {continued)

IFRS 15 lease Habilltles - Group

As o 82 week Asal 52 week
petlod ended petiod ended
27 March 2021 28 March

2020
£000 £000
Curremt 12,182 15,204
Nor=current 43,137 TVQ77
IFRS 14 lease Hakility 75.31¢ 85.281

The weighted average incremental borowing rate applied to measure lease liabilities is 7.72%.

As of 52 week

period ended 27

March 2021

Maturity analysis £D00
No later than 1 year 12,182
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 79,958
Laler than 5 yeaes 33.17¢
5.7

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regarg to its lease liabilities. Lease liabiities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function. Overall the variable payments constifute vp to 5% of the
Group's entire lecse payments, The group expects this ratio to remain constant in future years. The variabie
payments depend on ticket sales and consequentiy on the averall economic development over the next

few years, The total cash cutfiow for leases amounted to £13.6m (2020; £13.4m].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDCD 27 MARCH 2021

21. PFrovisicns - Group

Acquisition- Dilapidations Refunds and Other Totat

related Ticketing

provisions Provision
Group £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 30 March 201% 11,341 £33 - 12 12,888
Additions - 2,611 11,241 - 13852
Utilised/freleased (1.085) - - - {1,055}
At 28 March 2020 10,284 3,244 11,241 712 25483
Addilions - 226 377 1,142 3,889
Forelgn exchange adjustments (431} 20 - - (724)
Utilisod/released - - {10.804] (190] {12777
Al 27 March 2021 2,835 3,490 812 1,464 15301

Acauisition-related provisions relate 1o earn out agreements inrespect of the acquisiions of Mehr! Group.

The consideration is payable dependent on success factor criteria over the next two vears.

Dilopidations relate to the expected level of dilapidations mainly related to central offices. The adequacy

of the provisions is periodically reviewed to ensure that they will meet the final obligations.

The Company has no preyisions [2020: £nil].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

22. Delered tax - Group

Revaluation Accelerated Acquisifion Tax losses Otherliming Total

of praperty tax intangibles diterences

depraciation

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'00¢
At 30 March 2012 24,457 {654) 2,189 {2,442) (1,618} 21,942
Chargel{credit) to profit of loss 2,116 52 (73 912} {5,993} {4.810)
At 28 March 2020 26,573 {402) 2,124 {3.354) {7611} 17,132
Charget{credit) to profit of loss {654 842 {87} {13,182 6832 (6,249
At 27 March 2021 25919 240 2,039 {14,534) (779) 10.883
27 March 28 March
2021 2020
£'000 £'00C
Detarred tax iabilties 28,198 28,699
Deferred tax assets {17.315) {11,567)
Net deferrad tax liability 10,883 17.132

Recognisad deferred tax assets are expectad 1o be reclised by profits generated in future years in each

relavant lamitory,

The Company has no deferred tax (2020: £nil}.

23. Share caplial - Group and Company

Number of £1 Nomina!
QOrdinary shares value
£000

Authorised, ksued and fulty paid:
At 30 March 2017 and 28 March 2020 262,167 262
Net proceeds of shares issued 151,260 152
At 27 Morch 2021 413,427 414

On 14 Cciober 2020 an additional 85,500 Ordinary shares were issued in the Compaony with a nomingl vaive

of £1 each for ¢ total consideration of £86k.

On 25 pMarch 2021 on additional 85.761 Ordinary shares were ksuved in the Company with a nominal vaiue
of £] sach for o tolal consideration of £46k.

79

Sensitivity: Interna! Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24, Notes lo the cash flow statement

Net cash generated by operaling aclivilles

For the 52 week For the 52

perod ended  week period

27 March 2021 ended 28

March 2020

£'000 £00C

Operating (loss)/profit [94.607) 2,222
Impairment ot assets - 14,930
Amanisation of intangible fixed assets 1,988 15974
Depraciation of property, plont and equipment 26615 21,439
Depreciation charge for ight-of-use assets - bulldings 8.801 8759
Sharo of results of associates and joint ventures {249 {702
{Decreqse) increqse in provisions {9.682 92.959
Operating cash flows before movements in waorking capital {67.138) 58,581
Decreaso/[incroase] in inventories 539 {125)
Decrease inreceivables 24,081 i.815
(Decroase) fincrease in payables {48,147} 8,966
Cash flow FFom operaling aclivilies {110,663) 69,237
Corporate tax received/|paid) 2,137 (7.002)
Net cash flow from operaling activities {108.524) 62235
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Notes te cash flow statement {(continued)

Net debt reconcliaflon
As at 52 week As at 52 week
peticd ended 27 perod ended 28
March 2021 March 20020
£000 £'0300
Bank loans - senior debt {358,000) {358,000)
Bark loans - ravolving credit faciiity [69.370] {69.370)
Total senior debt (427,370) (427,370)
Fair value adjustment/ uncmertised finoncing {16 858} {14.261)
fees
Bark loars - other - {B4,409)
Sharghelder loans (139.179) -
Obligatians under finance leases [144.088) {177,180)
Total dabt (747,493} (703.220)
Cash and gosh eguivalents 185,432 139,045
Net debt {564,041) (544,155)
Movement in net debt
Cash a! bank Debt Total

£000 £000 £'000
Net debt as of 28 March 2020 139.065 (703.220) (544,155)
Cash flows 43,337 [38.406] 2,933
Foreign exchange acjustments {1,972 - {1y}
Cther non-cash movement - {17.867) (7.887)
Nat debt as of 27 March 2021 185,432 {747,493} (564,061}
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

25, Contingeni lichilities

A comporate cross guarantee of the senior debt exists between the Compoany and the majority of its
subsidiary undertakings. The senior debt is secured by a debeniure over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group also has in place various guarantees across its portlalio, which are typicdl of commercial
and property rental agreements.

24. Cortingent assets

At the balance sheet date the Group had applied to the Gemmon govemment for COVID- 12 related grant
income. At that date management deemed it prabable that the application would be successiul, with

expected future income of €10.8 million.

27. Commitments

Capliat commiiments

At the baionce sheet date, the Group had material contractual commitments for capital expenditure of
£nil {20207 £nil).

28. Flnanclal rsk management

Cagpltal risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to maximise shareholder value whist safeguarging the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In common with other privale equity portiolic companies,
the Group camies a high level of net debt compared to equity. Total capitol is calculated as total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of position, pius net bonk debl. Net bark debt is calculated as tha
total of long ond short term porowings as thown in the Consolidated Statement of Fingncial Position, less

cash and cash equivalents.
Financlal risk management objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including currency risk, interest rate rsk, credit
risk. and liquidity risk.

The Group's overdll risk management programme focuses on minimising potential gdverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Descriptions of the financial risks and how these are managed and mitigated are included in the Strategic
Report ohpages 11 and 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

28, Financial risk management {confinued)

The below fable demonstrates the sensitivity to ¢ reasonably possible change in interest rates and foraign

exchonge rates.

Financlal risks Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate rigk An increase/dscrease  of one percentoge point in LBOR  would
increase/decrease the Group's loss by £4.087 000 (2020: £5,117,000),

Foreign exchange Had GEBF strengthened agamst the US doliar by an additional 1% during the
risk period, gssuming ol other varables remained corstant, the Group's loss
woulkd have decreased by £2688,000 {2020 £191,000).

Had GBP strengthened against the Euro by an additional 1% during the
period, assuming all ather varables remained constant, the Group's loss
would have decreased by £110,000 {2020 increase of £352,000}.

Liguidity

The following tables detall the Group's contractual maturities for its financial liobifties with agreed
repayment pefiods. The tables have been drown up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabiities ond based on the earliest dote on which the Group con be required to pay. The tobile inclides
both interast and principal cash fows. To the extent that interest fiows are floating rate. the undiscounted
amount is derived from interast rate curves at the balance sheet date. The Group & not party to any

derivative contracts.

Less than t
yoar 1-Syeqars 5+ yeors Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
27 March 2021
Trade and other payabies 72,8465 - - 72,855
Finance tegse fiabilities 4,329 17.753 400,473 422,755
Borowings £9.370 514,037 - 583,407
Yotal cash-setiled lloblities 146,544 §31.790 400,673 1.077.027
28 March 2020
Trade and other payabies 115,104 - - 115,108
Finance lease lighlities 4,286 17.578 405.639 427 503
Borowings &%,370 456,670 - 524,040
Total cash-setiled Habliilies 188,742 474,248 405,637 1,048 449

The Compony hos no refevant cash-settled assets or Eabilities and so has no kquidity risk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

29. Financlal Instrumends

Categories of Anancial Instiuments

Cash and financla Total
recelvables Gabiitles ot
amorlised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000

27 March 2021
Cash ond cash equiivalents 185432 . 185,432
Trade and other receivables 39,340 - 39,360
Financlal asseds 224 792 - 224,792
Trade and other poyables - 74844 74844
Bomowings - S83.407 583,407
Qbligations under finance leases - 166086 185,085
Financial llabiifies - 824,339 824, 33%
Net financial assets/(abillles) 224,792 {824,339) {599.547}
28 March 2020 L
Cuosh and cash equivalents 139,065 - 137,045
Trade and cther receivabiles 62,554 - 62,554
Financlal assels 201,419 - 201,619
Financlal llablltfes
Trade and other payables 117,210 117,210
Bomrowings - 526,040 526,040
Cbligations under finance leases - 177,180 177,180
Financial llabllittes - 820,430 820,430
Net inanclal assets/(llabllifies) 201,419 {820,430) {618,811}

Fak value measurements

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financiat assets and financial kabilities recorded of

amodtised cost in the financial statements approximale to their fair volues.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

30. Confrolling party

The Company's uitimate parent company & IELuxce S.a.rt {Luxembourg). which is controlled by Providence
Equity Partners VIl A LP {Cayman isiands) and Providence VI Global Holdings P {Coyman klands). The
Dikectors consider these parfies to be the contraling party.

31. Relgted party transactions

Group
Transcactions with directors and key management personnel

Remuneration paid to the directors or other, who are coensidered to be key mancgement personne|, is

disclosed in note 6.
Trading fransacfions

Duifg the panod, the Group provided productionselated services to associates ond joint ventaes of
£328,562 (2020 £51.875). Al the end of the period, balances of £1.251.044 (2020: £115,585) were owed to
the Group by e associales and joint ventures, These balances are unsecured and will be settled
pericdically over the cowse of the production. There are cumenthly no provisions rekating to these balances.

These transactions have been conducted at arm's length.
32. Events aler balance sheet date

On 10 December 2020, IEHL US Holdings, inc. entered into o soie and purchase agreement for the
acquisition of Brogoway San Froncisco, LLC and Nederiander Detvoit, LLC for consideration of £173.9
millior. Cn 29 Marcin 2021 the conditions ware met to define the goguisition date of this transaction.

This acquisition adds fwo theatres in San Froncisca ond three in Detoit to the Group's porifolio of cwned

and operated verwes.

Subsegquent to the pernod end the Group received €54 miion of COVID-1? raigted government grant
income from the German government,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entlties, associates and joint ventures and Invesiments

Subsidiaries

100% of the ardingry share capital of alt subsidiaries is owned direclly orindirecily unless otherwise indicated.
Where indicated, shareholdings are effecliva ownarship percentages as held by the parent e If o
subsidiary holding company is 90% owned, ond owns 100% of all ifs subsidiaries, ai subsidicries are shown as
breing Y0% owned).

incorporated in Unlled Kingdom

Al subsidianies have laken the $47%a exemplion from qudit under parent company guarantee.

Subsidiory undertaking % Shares hetd Piincipal activity
Diract Investments
Irtemational Entertainment Midco Limited’ Heolding company

Indirect investments

AKA CP Limited?

AKA Group Limited®

AKA NYC Limited?

AKA Promaotions Limited?
ATG tntertainment Limited®
ATG London Limited®

ATG Management Limited?

ATG Proguctions Uimited?®

Aylesbury Waterside Theate Limited?
Churchill Theatre Bromlsy Limiled?

CP Studia Limited?

Digital Media Services UK Limited?

Encore Intemational Merchandise Limiled?
First Family Entertainment LLP?

G.S Lashmar Limited? 0%
Glasgow Theatres Limited?

Highland Fling Japan Limited?®

International Entertcinment Finance Limited?
Internationat Entertainment investments
Limited*

London Theatre Club Limited?

London Tumstyle Lirnited?

Millon Keynes Theatre Limited?

New Wimbledon Theatre Limited®
Playhouse Theatre Limited?

Richmond Theatre Limited®

Savoy Theatre Group Limited?

Savoy Theatre Holdings Limited?

Savoy Theatre Limited®

Screenstoge Limited®

Screenstage Productions Limited?

Smart Plays Limited®

Sonia Friedman Productions Limitec?
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Marketing services
Holding company
Marketing services
Markeling services
Holding comparny
Theatre operator and
ticketing company
Domant

Production company
Theatre operator
Thealre operalor
Marketing services
Cigital media services
Merchandiser
Production company
Domant

Theatre operator
Commant

Holding company
Holding company

Dormant

Cormani

Theats opergtor
Theaatre oparator
Theatre cperator
Theatre operator
Holding company
Domant

Theatre operator
Cormant

Comant
Commant
Production company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiory entities, assoclales and jaint ventures and Investments (continue)

SFP Draams Limited®

SFP Shows Limited?

SFE Sunny Limited?®

Stoke-on-Trent Theatres Limited?

The Ambassador Entertainment Group
Lirnited?

The Ambassador Theatre Group Limited?
The Ambassador Theatre Group [Venues)
Limited?

The Ambassadar Thedire Group Oveneas
Holdings Limited?

Theatire Manogeament {Hoildings) Umited?
Thaatre Monagement Limited®

The Dwke of York's Theatre Limited?

Tha Ticka$ Machine Group Limited?
Theatre Royad Brighton Limited?

walter's House Limitec?

Woking Tumstyle Limited?

tncarporated in USA

Subsidiary undertaking

ACE Theatical Group, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises ~ Brooklyn, LLC?

Arts Center Enlemrises — Now Odesars, LLC?
Arts Cenler Enlerprises — Sugar Land, LLCH
Aambassadaor Theatre Group — NY, LLCS

ATG Calonial, LLCX

ATG San francisco

ATG Tickefs US, LLCS

Craative Farinesship LA, Inc'?

Encore Merchandising, Inc'*

Hudson Thealre, LLCEH

IEHL US Holdings Inc’

Kings Theatre Developer, (LG

Kings Theatre Manager, LICE

Lyric Theatre, LLCS

Maojestic Presends LLC?

Soenger Aggregator Leverags Lender, LLC
Saenger Theatre Deveioper, Inct

Saenger Theatre Manager, LLC*

Socenger theatre Master Tenant LLC

sasnger Theatre Partnership, Lid’

SFP-NY, LLCS

Saenger Theaire Redevelopment Company LLC?
Sundance Productions, Inc?

The Ambassader Theatrs Group US Holdings, Inc®
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87

% Shares heid

Production company
Production company
Production company
Theatre operator
Holding company

Holding and productions
Theatre operator

Holding company

Holding company
Theatre aperator
Theatre operatar
Ticketing agency
Theatre operator
Thedatre operator
Theatre operator

Principal activity

Management sevices
Theatrs operator
Theate operator
Theatrs operator
Venue operator
Production campany
Yenue operator
Venue operator
Ticketing agency
Marketing services
Dormant

Theatre cperator
Halding company
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatre operaior
Thedatre operatar
Financing company
Venue developer
Managing member
Thedatre operator
Dommant

Production compony
Venue developer
Production company
Holding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD EMDED 27 MARCI 1 2021

33. Svbsidiary enlities, associates and Joint ventures and investments {continved)
Incorporaied in Germany

The following subsidiaries have elected to apply the exempliion available under §244. section 3 of the
German Cemmercial Code and have not prepared and publshed financial stataments under German
GAAFP because they are included as ully consolidated subsidicries in the ATG Group financial statements,

AKA Promotions [Australia) Pty itd!!
Encore Merchondise jAustralia) Pty Limited !

The Ambassador Theatre Geoup Asia Pacific Py
Limited'?

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held Principal aclivity
BB Entertainment Holding GmibH® Holding company
BB Group GmbH* Holding/Management
services company
BB Fromotion GmbH* Promotions company
Bodyguard Verwaltungs GmbH™@ Heolding company
Bodyguard mMusical GmbH & Co KG'? Procuction company
ESMS GmibbH® Marketing services
Fandaango Musical GmbH? Production company
©On Stage Productions GmbH !4 Production company
Mehr-8B Entertainment GmbH'3 Holding company
Deutiche Eintrttskarten TKS GmbH '+ Ticketing company
Deutsche Eintrittskartan TKS Service Center GmbH's Ticketing company
Dirty Dancing Toumee Produktions GmbH & Co. KG'# Production campany
mMehr-BB Theater GmbH ¢ Theater operater
MMS mMehrl Marketing & Sales GmbH™ Marketing services
tMusical-Dome Verwaltungs- und Bedriebsgeseliscaft Thaater cperator
mle?
Starfight Express GanbH'e Production company
HP-Theater Produktionsgesellschaft miboH!s Production company
Cirty Dancing Gasispiel Yerwaltungs GmbH' Helding compary
incorporatad in Auslrodior
Subsidiary undertoking % Shares held Principal achlivity

Markeding services
Dormant
Production company

Associates and Joint Venlures
Name Incorpoeated % Shares held  Principal aclivity
ASS, Concerts & Promotion GmbH Gemnany 49 8% Procduchion company
HP Wes! End Limited? United Kingdom 25% Production company
JB LUK Tour It Produclions L United Kingdom 0% Production company
ISM Show AGH Swilzerland 50% Production company
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entilies, associates and joint ventures and investments {confinved)

Clher Invesimentis

Name Incorporated % Shares held Principal ochvity
Cieven iInvestmenis Lid United Kingdom 10% Procduction company
Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company  USA 1.08% Venue developer
LLC

Meriin Entertainments plc United Kingdom 0.00% Entertanment group
Stagessrvice Frankfurtarn Main GmiboH Germany W% Production company

! These companies have o registerad office of 28 5t, George Street, London Wi3S 2FA

IThese companias have a ragistered office of | 15 Shaftesbury Avanue, Cambridge Ciraus, tondon WC2H 8AF
*These companies have a megisterad office of 20 Floor Alexander House, Church Path, Woking, Surrey
GU2! &EJ

*This company has a registered office of 5% Fioor, 8% New Bond Street, London W1S 1DA

sThese companies have a registered office of Capitol Services, Inc., 1675 South State §t., Ste B, Dover,

DE 19901

¢These companies have a registered office of Capital Corporate Services, inc., 8550 United Plaza Bidg. ! Ste
305, Bafon Rouge, LA 70809

These companias have G reqistered office of Capitol Corporate Services, Inc., 208 E. 9tk §t., Ste 1300,
Austin, TX 78701

8This comnpany has a registered office of Filelson, Lasky, Aslan, Couture. & Gormise. Richard Garmise, 551
Sth Ave #605, New Yark, NY 10174

*These companies have aregistered office of RontgenstraBe 7, 48167 Mannheim

UThese companies have o registered office of Landsbergstraie 28, 50678 Kéin

"These companies have a registered office of Suite 6.1, Level 8, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melboume, Victoria
3004, Australia

12%his company has a registered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Streel, Doubla Bay, NSW 2028

}1his company has a registered office of Carmenstrafe 12, 8032 Zunch

Y 1his company hos g registered office of Komoedienstr, 11, 50647 £din

3 1his company has a registered office of Grkraiher Str. 30, 40233 Dosseldorf

€ This compony has g registered office of BanksstraBie 28, 20097 Hamburg

" This company hds a registered office of Goldgasse 1, 50648 Kaln

B Tnis company has g registared office of Stadionnng 24, 44791 Bochum

#This company has aregistered office of 1800 Post Oak Bivd. & Boulevard Piace, Suite 450, Houston, Texas
77056

M This company has aregistered office of 1313 N Market 5t., Ste 5100 Wilmington, DE 19801

&y
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